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PREFACE

This study was undertaken in order that the people of
Morris County, ineluding teachers , parents, and students, as
well as other interested persons .might possibly become better
informed as to the early efforts, difficulties, and accomplish-
ments of the settlers of the county in the education of their
children, young men, and young women of the county. It is
further hoped that the study has been the means of compiling
many historical incidents connected with early education that
otherwise might soon have been lost by the passing on of our
few’ remainling early settlers.

The writer wishes to acknowledge the assistance of the
different indiw}iduals who helped +to make this study possible,
particularly the assistance of TLalla M. Brigham, and Mabttie M.
Harris, both of whom have been interested in historical and
educational work in the county. The writer also wishes %o
acknowledge, with much sincerity, the kind assistance of Dr.
Edwin J. Brown, Director of the Graduate Division of the Fan-
sas State Teachers College of Emporia, who mads éo many valu-

able suggestions while directing this study.

Hugh vValentine Leitch.
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. CHAPTER I
INTRODUCTION
The Nature of the Study

The principal objective of thils study is to btrace the Educ-
atioual Growth of Morris County Kansas, particularly in the
sarlier stages of its development. The purpose of the study is
to gather together and complle in a clear understandable manu-
script all the material available which to any extent bears on
the educational gromth of the county. Wherever possible state
records have been used to verify the accuracy of materials gather-
ed Prom other sources, and in other instances the accuracy of the
material has been checked by gathering facts from different
sources and using those which seemed the most valid.

Further, it is hoped that the study will show in some detail,
the developmeut of districﬁ organization, of bullding dnd equlip-
ping buildings, of certificating, payling, and hiring teachers.
Other duties connected with county school sdministration will be
touched upon, however it is not the purpose of this study to
attempt any prediction a8 to the future growth or educational
trends of the county.

The study has further possibilitles of being usable in
bringing to the light many facts almost wholly unknewn to the
layman and even to the professlional educators of the county and
state. There is also & posalbility of this material belng
utilized further 1in completing educational records of the state

and natiou.



The Scope of the Study

The study extends Oveq a period of approximately elghty-
five years (1847-1933) during which time Morrils County, as well
as Kansas has gone through s period .of development.

During this time the Indiaus were moved to ¥ansas, the
Civil War fought, the Indians again moyed and the settlement of
the county and state made complete. These events in order of
their appearance are as follows: The moving of the Kaws to the
county in (18471; the coming of the first white settler to the
county in (1847): the first school in the county in (1850);
the ofganization of the county in (1858); the first institute
for teacher training in (1864); the first secondary school in
the county (1885). As will be observed some of the data in
this compilation are not primarily conunected with the education~
al growth of the county. However, it 1s necessary to 1lnclude
this information in order to give the study an adequate back-

ground.

The Method of Procedurs

The first step in the procedure was the physical location
of the territory in which the study was to be made. This stép
also lncludes the attitude of the native inhabitants of this
region toward education as contrasted with that of the early
white settlers who settled in the various parts -of the county.
‘ The second step was a statlstical search through the Annual
and Blennilal Reports of State Superintendents to the wvarious

Governors. Lhe search also extended to & host of other sources .
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of material which'was usable, some quoted directly, in the dev-
elopment of this study.

County Super intendents reports to the State Superintendent
of Public Instruction were next made and where pertinent meterial
was found it was drafted into the body of the study. '

The material suggested in the three preceding paragraphs
was used as the skeleton around whieh the educational growth:of

the county was developed.

The Types and Bources of Data

The data for the study counsisted mainly of the following

sources:
(1) Ea;ly hist ories of Kansas.
(2) Material gathered from many of the few remaining
pioneers in the settlemeunt of the county. |
(3) Annual and Bieunnial Reports of the Superintendent of
Public Instruction to the wvarious governors of Ransas.
Newspeper and magazine articles which dealt with the sub-

Ject of the study were also used in this compilation.

The Method of Procedure
In compiling the material of this study a chronologiocal
order of deveiopment was followed, both in the selection of
chapter headings, and in the devéloPment of each chapter. In
each chapter & rather inténse study was made of the very early
‘material relating to the early educational growth, then as the

period of educational growth seemed to have taken definite shape

#



or form the study was made more general, however the chronolo-

gical order of events was sgtill adhered to .



' CHAPTER IT
HISTORICAT SETTING

" Location

Morris County, Kensas, is one of the oldest and most his-
torical counties in the state. It is situated in the center of
the eastern half of the state. This county is bounded on the
north by Geary County, and a portion of Waubaunsee; on the sast
by Lyon and & portion of Waubaunsee; on the south by Chase and
8 portion of Marion; on the west by Dickenson and a portion of
Marion c¢ounties. The county contains fourteen civil towunships
and in shape 1s square, except that in its ndrtheast corner its
square fdrmétion is broken by the southwest corner of Waubasunsee
County, while in the northwest corner a strip about two miles
wide and four miles long is taken from the square and added to
Dickenson County. The county contains 700 square miles, or
448,000 acres, and except for the polnts where its square form-
ation is broken, it is twenty-four miles from north to south

and thirty miles from east %o west.l

Topography
|  Phe surface of the county, in the greater part, is rolling
prairie.' Along the Neosho, however, aﬁd eSpecially around
Couneil Grove, the banks of the stream rise to considerable
height, these elevaetions occurring sometimes on one silde of the

stream and sometimes on the other. From the top of these

T T. A, Andreas, History of Kansas, ps 790



elevations the land rolls gently awsy. The highest élevation
of the county i1s at Council Grove and from this point the
gurrounding couatry appears like & rolling sea. The ridges
or watersheds have an east and west direction, and wniie Eaving
gufficient slope to insure adequate drainage, are not'sq abrupt
a8 to cause loss of soll by a normal amount of yainfall. There
are numerous streams in the county om all of which there is an
abundance of fine timber. The valleys through which these
Streams flow vary in width from one-half to two miles, and the
land in these valleys 1s spoken of as "bottom J.and.""2

The timber along fhese streams consists of oak, hilckory,
walnut, hackberry, cottonwood, and syoamore.. The size of the
timber along the streams seems to correlate to & considerable
extent with the size of the streams. The average width of these
strips of timber is from one-fourth to one-half mile.3

The soil is very rich and deep for the most part and in
normal seasons 1s very productive. The deepeéﬁ and best land,
however, is along the streams. This "bottom land" consists of
about twenty~-five per cent of the land of the county. The other
seventy~five per cent of the soil is somewhat more rolling and
is used for grbwing gfasses, which thrive abundantly upon it,

and for growing forage crops. DBesildes these forage crops the

county produces a large amount of wheat, corn, and oats. The
corn and oats are used chiefly for growling and fattening live-

gtock while most of the wheat 1a sent to the market.4

oL Andreas, History of Kansas, Ds. 796.
3 Ibid., p. 796. —
4 m-, D 796, \




Ocoupations

Stock railsing is the most important industry, yet it would
uot be of such great importance if 1t was not for the second
important industry of the county, farming. Without these agric-
ultural pursults which furnish winter feed for the stock raiser;
his industry would be far from the first in the state and éounty.

There are many fine herds of livestock in the county that
tlrive on the fine pastures in the summer and on the abundance

of succulent forage, produced in the county, in the winter.
Some fine berds of Hereford cattle are owned by Miller and Mann-
ing of the Sylvaun Park stock farm, Henry White of Council Grove,
and by C. M. Haun of White Olty. Other large cattlemen of the
county are Chase Brothers, Council Grove, F. W. and ¢. R. At-
kihson of Burdick, F., W. Thomas of Dunlap,&Gabriel Frank; and
James Metcalf of Council Grove. | |

Agriculture in the county, as in the entlre state, is a
very thriving industry. Proof of this lies in the fact that
the county is a division of the state which is the 1argenf pro-
ducer of wheat of any politicsl unit on earth. Its nearnéss
t0 the second largest meat packing industry in the world, second
largest creamery on earth, and the second largest flour milling
industry in the United States also give the county a great ad-
vantage as an agricultural county.5

Horticulture is salso pursued to a considerable extent in

Morris County. The Sharpe orchards, located near Counoil

B Kausas Facta, VoL. L, 1929, A Year-book of Kensas, pp. Lo, £30.
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Grove are the largest orchards in Kansags or the Central West~6

RBarly Settleme nts

The ear liest settlement in the county was made in and around
the county seat of the county, Council Grove. This settlement
was the outgrowth of & treaty, which was made with the Kaw Ind-
lans in 1825 under a large oak ’lsree, familiarly known to people
of Councll Grove today and to many people over the state as
"gouncil-Oak." The tree is still standing within the present
limits of the city, which is named for it.'

Tradition tells us that Kit Carson cut the name Council
Grove on a buffalo hide and nailed 1t to the tree.in 18287, the
name béing drawn from the council meeting held in, the iovaly
grove, of which the tree was a part.S | | | |

During the years when the Santa Fe tradé was being ‘buik;l.t
up, the Neosho crossing became the meeting place 0% the traders
to form long caravans and often a day or 'two,;" s delay was caused
by this delayed organization of the settlers. Then too this
was the last place where good timber could be secured for wagou

repairs for use on the trip to Santa Fe.g , )

In 1847, Seth M. Hays, who had obtained & license to trade
with the Kew Indlans on the reservatlon, to which they had in
that year been moved and which was a block of land twenty milps

square with the present Councll Grove in its center, came here

6T. A. Andreas, Higtory of Kenses, D. 196.
7 F. W. Blackmar, Hist of Kenpes, Vol. I, p. 461.

8601
8 T. M. Brigham, The Story of Council Grove, p. 8.
9 Bleclkmer, op. oit., Ds 460.




and built & log cabin or supply house on the present gite of
the Hays Tavern. Hays also had in mind furnishing "last chance
gsupplies” to the traders, bound for Sante Fe, hence the name "Last
.Ghanoe" gstore, as this little outpost was so familiarly known
to the traders bound for Santa Fe;lo

The Federsl government, in 1849, established a mail route
to New Mexico, and Council Grove proved to be the most important
station on the seven hundred mile journey. In connection with
this mail route, the government established & blacksmith shop,
Which was first operated by a man named Mitchell, who a short
time later was relieved by Emanuel Mosier. Mosier moved to
Council Grove with his femily in 1850. The following year
Mrs. Mosier's brothers, A. J. and Josh Baker moved %o Council
Grove, also her two sisters, Mrs. El1i Sewell, and Eliza Baker,
who afterward married T. 3. Huffaker. 1In 1850 the government
erected & building on the corner of Wood and Main streets for
grain supplies. The mail compeny also built & log-chinked
house oun the preseunt site of the Farmers and Drovérs :Bank.ll

Other settlers soon followed and by 1850, there were pro-
bably a dozen families in the settlement, also a number of
settlers without families. The first white woman, Mrs. Eliga
Mitchell, the wife of & government blacksmith, csasme here in
1848. BSome of the most important of these men, who came here

to trade with the 1700 Indians on the reservation at that time
(1848), as well as to supply the Santa Fe traders and to esta-

I0 T, A, Andreas, History of Kensas, D 790.
11 Brighem, op. ¢if., p. 1IV
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blish homes were Seth M. Hays, ¢. H. Withington, J. C. Munkers,
Ae d. Baker, Josh Baker, B, Mosier, Chauteau Brothers, and
Columbia Brothers.lz

The period from 1850 to 1854 was & very prosperous period
for Counell Grove. It, at that time, was the last point. at
which supplies aould be obtained by traders going west. At
that time the Withington Brothers, 3. M. Hays, Chauteau Brothemrs,
A. J. Beker, and Josh Baker, Emaniel Mosier end christOPher
Columbisa, constituted the business population of the towa.l

Other early settlements were made in Neosho and Clarks
Creek townships. These, hovever, do not date back as far as
the settlement at Council Grove. The Clarks Creeks settlement
dates back to0 1856 when the Hansen, Warneke, Gunter, and Baxbr
families settled on Clarks creek somewhat north of the present
School Digtriet No. 4, and in what is now District No. 1O.

The following year Stephen Atkinson settled with his family
farther up the creek. With him, or near that time, came the
Hammond, Sherrod, and Weters families. These families were some--
what more familiar with frontisr life than the previously men-
tioned families,.fhe Hammonds, Sherrods, and Waters having ex~
perienced frontier life in Xentucky and Tennessee, while the
Atkinsons had followed the frontier from Ohio into Indiana then

into Missouri, then from there to the Clarks Creek settlements.l4

L2 Blackmar, op. cit., p. 460.

13 Brighem, o . ., pe 12,

14 Mrs. Arch hnson Latimer, Kansas. Personal interview. Mrs.
Johnson came %o Morris gounty (Clarke Oreek) in 1887.




The settlement in Neosho township was begun in 1855. Some
of the early settlers who helped to make this settlement were
the Herold Family inoluding James Johnson, the husband of
Herold's daughter, Tim Downing and his family, Bill Tdrd, for
whom the oreek on whish some of these early settlers settled
was naemed, and Isaac Downing. Levi Taylor also came at about
this time. This settlemsnt was sbout eight miles northwest of
Council Grove at the junctlon where Laird's creek empties into
the Neosho.l5

At this time there were some settlers scattered aiong be-
tween this settlement, then called Priceville in honor of a
men, Price, who was oune of the most active settlers in the

settlement and Council Grove. Mr. Price ran & sawmill in that

11

locality for a time and sawed most of the lumber for the settlers

iﬁ this settlement and also for the settlement west of it which
was later called Parkerville, and whiech was first began in 1858
or 1859.%8

The settlement at Parkerville had & rather loglical origin.
A stage or freight route had been established between Councill
Grove and Junction City. This route was up the Neosho River
to the present village of Parkerville. At this place which
was in site of the lovely valley of the Neosho the trail turn-
ed in & northerly directionitoward Junction. .It was the
splendid farming region here, together with the sheltering hill
on the north that lnduced some land hungry settlers to stop off

I5 ¥rs. Lou McAllster, Parkerville, Kausas. Personsl I1nterview.
Mrs. MoAligter came to Parkerville in 1860.

16 ¢. C. Churchman, Parkerville, Kansas. Personsl Interview.
Mr. Churchman came to Morris County in 1865.
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here and establish homes. Among the earliest of these settlers

were Fletcher Uress, Ran and Detroit Burton, G. W. Churchman

and son C. C., William and Tom Black, Joe Eschbaugh, Anderson

Sharpe, Soddie Parker, and T. X. Haun. L’
These settlers established homes in & radius of about four

miles of the present village. Fletoher Cress settled on a farm

about a mile south of the presen”c town. William Black settled

on & farm since known as the Parker place at the west edge of

the village in & log house which is still inhabited. Tom Black

settled on & farm which jolus the town on the west and which is

now known as the Stage place. T. N. Haun settled asbout three

miles up & stream south of the village. The stream on which

he settled has since been called Haun creek. Mr. Eschbaugh

also settled on that creek but only about two miles from the

trading center of the little community. Henry Ramsey, yith

his sons Tom, Bill, George, Dave and his daughter Priscilla,

settled ebout one-~half mile east 6f where the village now stands.

Anderson Sharpe and Soddie Parker settled sbout ome and one-

half miles northeast of +the village on what is now known asg

the Richards place. Mr. Sharpe came here from Missouri. He

drove through with his femily in wegons and brought with him

hogs, sheep, and cattle, whioch he had retained when he sold

hig farm in Missouri in order that he might come west where he

could have a large tract of free land. Mr. Sharpe's children

T7 Wre. Lou Mohllster, Parkerville, KenBas. Personsl L1nterview.
Mra. McAlister came to the county in 1860.




13

had heard glowlng accounts of Council Grove and looked forward
to getting to pass through the place only to be disappolnted at
i1t when thelr wagons creaked through the street.la

Parkerville made a rapid gromth in the early days and in
1871 contested Councll Grove for the county seat. An election
was called to settle the matter and all sorts of trickery was
resorted to by both sides. Men were brought into the county by
the hundreds for voting purposes. The population of the county
at that time was 2,225, while the number of votes cast was 1,3lZ2.
The election going to Councll &rove by a vote of 899 4o 413.
Parkerville, however, did not countinue to be the county's second
foremost city for any greet length of time, and at the present
time 1s seventh in size among the cities and villages of the

county.19

18, Ibid.
19 T. A. Andre&s, Historx of Kengag, p. 796.




CHAPTER III

EARLY EFFORTS TOWARD EDUCATION

The Kaw Indians were moved to the territory kunown as the
Kew Reservation in 1847. A trading post was established by the
govermment on this reservation for the benefits of the Indians,
so that they would be able to exchange their wares for those of
the white man. Following this movement, the Methodist Eplscopal
Church, knowing the benefits that might be derived by soclety
from educating the Indlans and having worked with them previous-
ly, decided to establish & mission on the reservation in order
that the "minds of the Indians might be tralned and enlightened
as to the'folkways, mores, and customs of the white man."l

With this thought in mind, the Methodist Board of Missions,
in 1850, had a stone mission or school house erected, which
st1ll stands in Council Grove. This same year they entered a
contract with T. 5. Huffaker to teach this school. The school
was to furnish instruction in academic subject matfer, as well
. a8 tréining in the growing of crops such as this county was
expected to produce. Mr. Huffaker acted in this capacity until
1854 when the school was discontinued.? | |

No man assoclated with Morris County has had more to do
with its educational growth than hes T. 3. Huffaker. He came
to the county in 1849 and until his death in 1910 was more or

less actively engaeged in educaticnal and religlous affairs.

T T A  Andreas, Blstory ol Rengas, Ps 796
2 IbidO, P 796. -
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He came as an Indlan teacher and taught in the misslon until’
1854, when the .Indlan school was sbandoned. As theres was no school o
for the white children at Councll Grove, WMr. Huffaker organized |
a school for them in May, 1851, and tgught them with the-Indians at
the mission. This was the flrst white -school in Kanszs. His marr-
lage t§ elizabeth Ann Baker May 6, 1852, was also the first marrd
lsge of white people in Kansas. They were married in the mission
by Rev. Nicholéoﬁ, a missionary, who happened to be at Council
Grove at the time.5

Records show that priocr to 1852 there had been three
other weddings performed in Kansas in which one person in each

had been a white person. In 1830, Rev. Van Quickenborne per-

formed these marriages in the Osage lation. The first merriage

was that of Francls D'Agbeau, allas Dubierte, a Frenchman, and
Mary, an (Osage woman. The second, Joseph Brown, alias Equesecs,
a Frenchman, son a&f Stepran Brown and Alice Gugulere, and |
Rosettd D'Agbeau daughter of Frances D'Agbeau and a Metif girl
of the Osage Natlion. The third marriage was that of Baslle
Vasaier, son of Baslc who was g half breed of the Osage Nation,
to Mary, an 0Osage woman, daughter of Kanza Skinza.4

The Huffakers'! daughter, Susie, born July 4, 1853, was the
first white child born in Mofris County. Mr. and Nrs, Huffaher
conducted one of the flrst Sunday schools in Kansasz, as well as
the first in Morris Cournty. It, too, was held in the mission.

Both Mr. and Mrs. Huffaker were active in the organization of

3 L. M, prighem, fhe Story of Uouneil Grove, p. 13.
4 M. A. Bordenkircher, A Hlstorlcal 3tudy of the Misslion Schools

in Terl"itOT’V‘ T AUEE 2T s vt B o0 o g mn TE0Y vy s o o

e -y



the Methodist Episcopal Church and gave the lot, on which it

was bullt to Council Grove. Mr. Huffaker held many positions
of honor in the county. He was active in Indlan affairs,

served twice 1in the legislature, was one of the first regents
of the Xansas St@te Normal School, and was also probate judge

several terms.5

The Kew Mission

The Kew Mission has stood on the west bank of the Neosho
for eighty-three yeears, and is still well preserved. The four
large chimneys, two at each end, and two broad halls through
the center, are the same, as in 1850 when the Mission was erect-
ed. It was built for a school for the Kew Indians and was used
as such for several years. The full-blooded Kaws did not’taks
kindly to the educational methods of their white brothers, and
only the orphans and dependents were allowed to attend the
school. For this reason Mr. Huffaker's time was not fully
occupied, so he started & free school for the white children
who lived here in 1851. There were only about twelve or fifteen
white children living in Council Grové at that time. Neverthe-
less, the fifst white school of the Sunflower State had its
birth in Council Grove in this historic building. Other teach-
ers followed Mr. Huffaker until 18656, when the East Side one-
story building was erected.® The other schools in Kansas which

antedate the Mission school were mixed schools, both Indians

b Brilgham, op. c¢lt., p. L3,
6 Brigham: op. ¢ .: p. 108.

Tem—————
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and whites attendlng.

During this early period several denominations establisheﬁ
nmiission gchools for the Indlans and any whites there ﬁere to
attend. The Methodist Episcopal Church was extremely active
in this work and, although not the first to establish mission
schools, they continued the work from December 1830, when Rev.
William Johnsou esteblished a mission and school for the Kaw
tribe Just east of the village of Valenoia and ten miles west
of Topeka. From 1830 until his death in 1842, Mr. Johuson and
his wife struggled among the Kaw Indians with little success.
The first two years they had an enrollment of sixteen students,
there being seven whites and nine Ind ians in the school.7”

. The summer of 1834 found Mr. Johnson'supervising the build-
ing of mission houses for the Kew Mission. The main building
was made of logs and was thirty-six by eighteen feet.

The Mission was closed, fslluwing the death of Mr. Johnson,
until 1844 but was reopened in 1845 by Rev., J. T. Perry and Mrs.
Perry. The Methndist Missionary Socliety had sent them out to
this mission to open a manual labor school such as was in
operation at the Shawnee Methodlgt Mission. The Perryb! were
quite mnsuceessful in their efforts here, and the next yesar
the school was permanently discontinued. Early mbsions were
also established by the Presbyterians, Catholioes, Baptists and

Friends. This education was not intended primarily for the

7 M. A. Bordenkilroher, "Historlcal Study of Misslon Schools in.
Early Territory Now ComprIsing Xensas, p. 43.
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original inhabitants but for the Indians who had been erowded
into this territory by the white men who had been enoroaching
on thedwr hunting ground. These Indisns from farther east had
been partially educated before beiqg moved and the Missionaries
did not wish to loose the fruits of their labor. For this
reason the white missionaries moved westward either with or
following the Indians. |

The old Mission was used for various purposes in the early
days--church, Sabbath school, public meetings, council house,
and stronghold against attack by the hostile Indians. Many
notable people were entertained here. The Huffaker family
lived in the Mission for many years after the school closed,
and the fact that it has been owned by their youngest daughter,
Mrs. Carpenter, for ten years or more, makes their conneetibn
all the more interesting. The ancient Kaw Missgion building is
the embodlment of the epic history of Council Grove, and is
one of the historic shrines of Morris County, as well as the
state of Kansas. The history of this state and county is in-
complete without its story, as well as the frequent and worthy
mention of T. 5. Huffaker, the first teacbef of the first white
school in Council Grove, Morris County and the state of Kansas .S

The Indian school taught by T. S. Huffaker is alleged to
have been discontinued because of its large expense, the cost
amounting to'fifty dollars per capita annually, and the govern-

ment refused to increase the appropriation. The puplls were

generally orphans and dependents of the tribe and were all doys,

8 Brigham, op. clt., p. 108,
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for the Indlans absolutely refused to send eny of the girls-g
Many of the Indien pupils were quieck to learun and succeed-
ed along certain lines of literary work, but they dld not re-
present the children of the best femilies of the tribe. The
full-blooded, aristocratic type of Indian consildered it degrad-
ing in the extreme to be temght the white man's education. They
were honest in this for they believed it would wesken them in
all the elements which preserved the true Indian ch&racter.lo
Again in 1859, when the ¥Xaw Reservation was reduced in
size to what is known as the "Diminished Reserve,” the agency
of the tribe was moved from Council Grove to a point about four
miles south-east of that eity, near the mouth of Big John Creek,
where the remains of some of the buildings may be seen today.
The government constructed substantial buildings, consisting
of an agency house, stables, storehouse, council-house and two
large frame school buildings. The large school buildings were
the most interesting, one of which was for the training of the
families of the people counected with the school and for trein-
ing the young Indiens in cooking and other domestic ways. The
other building, & long two-gtory structure, was for classes
and school purposes. At about the time these buildings were
erected the government also bullt about one hundred and fifty
st one cottages or cabins along the valley of the reservation
for the Indian families; the plan being to educate and civilize

the tribe as much &8 possible. The goverument erected these

9 Kansas otate Historlcal Soclety, VOlL. X, Ds BBb-356.
10 Kensas &$tate Historical Boclety, Vol. X, p. 356,

<
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buildings from Indisn funds and the educatlional efforts were
turned over to the Quaker sect, with Mathon Stubbs as manager.

Sehool was opened on the first of May 1863, and continued
until September 1866, then was discontinued as a failure be-
cause of the lack of miggilonary work among the children and
adults; it was thought to have satisfactory results, that the
children muset be better clothed and fed. The School was re-
gumed in 1869 and continued until 1873, when the tribe was re-
moved to the territory.t2

This last effort tomard Indian education was more succesSs-
ful, the parents influencing the children to attend. During
this period the Indiasns sent many of thelr girls to the school.

Formmer Senator Charles Curtis was a pupil at this school
at one time. His parents lived ip. North Topeka, but,his mother
being & member of the Kansas Nation (one-quarter blood)‘, he weas "
sent over to attend the tribal school. While here, & boy of
seven, after listening to and observing the preparatiohs for
the war with the Cheyeunes, he resolved to be the first to carzy
the news of the impending danger to his parents at Topeka. On
foot and alone, he took a‘short cut acrogs the hills to the
native city, guided by instinet and by "night candles" the
shining stars, he covered the distance in time that would do
credit to a llo:t'su—:unml.]'z

Not all the mimsion schools, however, experienced this

great dlfficulty in securing the interest of the Indisns in

LL 1bld., p. &b4.
1 TBId.. p. 358.
13 IEIan, P 360,
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education. Duriung the yeé:c 1836, the Friends Soclety erected
s mission building for the Shawnees, whom they had worked among
in Ohio before these Indlans had been moved to Xangas. This
school was opened the following year and soon had an enrollment,
of from fifteen to forty-five Indian children. All the children
who attended the school were boarded, lodged and clothed at the
expense of the Friends »‘Ev‘ocie’cy.sl4

Although the school was not a manual labor school, the
children when not attending academic classes were taught to work
on the farm, to serve and to help with the kitchen work. The
children, however, did not enjoy the actual work, thus meking
a rather serious problem for the superintendent of the mission.
In their academic classes, the Indians were taught reading,
writing, arithmetic, geography, and English grammar in the
school.t5

A new mission bullding was erected in 1845. It was three
stories high, twenty-four by seventy-two feet. The basement of
stone was for the kitchen and dining rooms, the upper stories
were frame and were used for school rooms, dormitories, and
rooms for the mission :Eamily.k The Friends continued this work
quite successfully among the Shawnee Indians until 1871 and
never did they depend wpon the Federal or State Government for
support for vthe migsion. The funds came directly from the

Soclety of Friends, mostly from Indiana and Ohio.ls

L M. A, BordenkirOHQr, Ops GLT po45-
ig Bgrdenkiroher, ops aif., Do Bé.
Ibid. ,
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Summar y

Early efforts toward educetion of the Kaw Indians were &s
a whole very unsuccessful. Mr. Johnson, on his death bed, after
seven yeers of hard labor among the Kaws, near Topeka, admitted
that he hed accomplished so little that he doubted the wisdom of
furthering the work among them-v Mission work among these same |
Indians in Morris County was also cousidered to be productive
of little visible good, except posgibly along literary liues.
The chief reason for this be ing that the Kaws were & peculiar

tribe, very heathenish, and superstituous, and not nearly as
gusceptible %o %@ucation and religidus instruction as most of
the obther tribes. |
Following the partial failure of the Methodist Missionaries,
the migssion work was turned over to the Friends Soclety, who
had done rather successful work with the Shawnees. This sect
also failed in their efforts with the Kews 1n that they were
unable to get many of the families to live in the comfortable
houses which the Government bad made for them. The Indlans
cla imed that these buildings would breed disease and that they
were unot as healthy as wigwams and lodges. Few of them learned
to farm and those few in a careless and indifferent manuer.
Phug it is seen that the Quaker effort with the tribe was as
unsuccessful as that of the Methodlats twenty years before.
The Kaws never took kindly to the religion of the white
man and of ten stated that i1t might be alright for the whites,
but that thelr own belief was better for them. This tribe,

however, waes not so much given to Indian religious ceremonies
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as many other tribes and were very reticent to express themaselves.
They had many grotesque superstitions bordering on polytheism for
there were inferior gods everywhere - in the‘saasons,‘in'the dark-
ness, in the light, heat, oold, o&er'the rivers, woods, plains,
hunting, war, ete. Some thought their homes were in the sun, .

some in the moon, The sun-dance was originallv s religious
ceremony. Probably no tribe in the Tnited States so close to the
border of civilization was so little influenced by religious

and educational effort.

During the years they sreuvpled the Council Grove reservation,
the Kaws jealously preserved many »~* thelr anclient customs end
most of thelr religious and superstitious charecteristics, and
it 1s sad to relate that theilr contact with their white brothers
wes more & curse thén a blessing. The early travelers who visited
them one Mmindred fifty years ago found them a better, happler,
healthier tribe of Indlans than when they were hustled off to the
Indian territory in 1873. During the later years of contact with
the white people, the vices acquired by the Indians far exceeded
the virtues they recelved. Teachers and agents might be ever so
able and zealous for the Indians! welfare, bub drunkasnnesgss and its
kindred vices, which the Indlans learned from the mercenary whits
man and Greaser who cared nothing for them but for the ir robes
and pelts, destroyed completely the Influencse of the mlsslonary
and teacher, and left the tribe in far worse condltlion than when

the white men firat met them.
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Barly White Sochools

Mr. Huffaker begén instructing white children in the Miss~-
ion building in Mey 1851. He continued this work until 1854
when Indian edﬁcation was.gi&en up temporarily. The school,
however, was cdntinued for the white children in the Mission
building until:1856 Wﬁen the first gschool for white children
in the county was built. This school, District No. 1, as it
was called, was a small frame Building which, even at that time,
was herdly adequate for the needs of the sebtlement. The settle-
ment by that time had grown to a considerable extent, there
having been erected two additional stare buildings, a second
blacksmith shop, numerous awellings, end in the year 1855, a
post office was established. G. W. Simecock was appoined post~
master at thﬂﬁ time buf refused to accept the appointment. Mr.
Huffaker was then appointed to fill thils wvacancy, thus éﬁother
duty was cast upon the already overburdened pilouneer. Before
this time the people had been getting their maill at the Mail
Station on the corner of Wood and Main street, but through
changes in Government policies, & post of fice was established,
even though no building md been selected for its location.
In 1857 the office was located in the "Last Chance™ store,
which was operated at the time by Tom Hill. This was the only
post office in the county and continued to be the only one
until the late sixtles. DPeople from the ad)oining settlements:
Neosho Valley, often oalled Priceville, and later called Downhng
after Tim Downing who was one of the early settlers of the tbwn—

ghip, and at the present time kuown as Kelso; Parkerville; the
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Pleasant Grove Settlement on Munkers ereek, would send a person
ou horseback once & week tb bring the mail to the settlements.17
The Brown Jug, the second school in the county, was esta-~
blished in 1858. The Neosho River was the natural boundary be~
tween this school and District No. 1, but many schoogwrangles
were experienced between the two schools. The East Side School
District No. 1, hed only three month sesslouns, while the Brown
Jug, District No. 2, had six and seven month sessions. Both
s8chools made their own appropristions and there was much discuse~-
ion of the Herits and defects of the short or long session, as
the case happened to be. TYears later, in 1865, when the graded
school was bullt by the two districts the controversy was
settled. In those days epplicants for positions as teachers
filed bids with the school board and of ten the lowest bldder
was given the position. Reverend Pritchett was the first teach-
er in the mew grade school. Joab Spencer, who was also &
minister and who had been variously occupled as farmer and
trader, as well as having been county super intendent from 1862~
1864, was chosen to succeed Mr. Pritchett. Other teachers in
this school in their chronological order were H. D. Preston,
Nellie Plumb, Miss Mary Jane Watson of Emporia, Miss Mary Ann
Hatten, mother of William Allen White. These teachers were
followed by & group who had been students in the school. Mr.
W. H. White, president of the Farmers and Drovers Bank, and who
has acted in that capacilty for over f£ifty years, is probably
the only living person who attended the little Brown Jug. The

17 Brlgham, L. H., The BEtory Of Counoll Brove, De Lbs
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Brown Jug was turned over to the colored people for a school
in 1887 and was used as such until 1919, when a new building
was erected for them in the south part of town.18

Early settlers tell us that the name, Brown Jug, was given
to the school because it remained unpainted so long that its
weather beaten sides became brown. To perpetuate its name 1t
has been painted brown several times. The Brown Jug is one of
the oldest school houses in Keansas, excepting the Indian Mission
of stone. TFor over half a century it was used as & school build-
ing for all children, but the last thirty years of 1ts use as a

school it was used as the Council Grove colored school. The
new colored school was given the name Llncoln school, in honoxr
of the men who did so much to emancipate the colored race.t?

The hundreds and hundreds who pasged over the door step of
the Brown Jug would make & long procession. Some of them have
traveled to distant lands, some have attained Wealth, someLhonor
and position, others have lingered near the little school house
and passed thelr lives among the old‘associations.

During the period this school was in active use, many re-
markable changes took place in the county. It was & long, long
trail from the oxcart to the automobile and airplane. The
roads were not hard-surfaced and the turns were sharp. The
Litgle Brown Jug hes witnessed the coming of the reilroad and
has seen the springwagon glve way to the automobile. The

county hes, during this period, blossomed as a rose. The valleys

18 IbId., p. 808,
19 Thid,, p. l21-124.
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have been made fruitful, the hills are now covered with sattle,
and the plains are now dotted with ferm homes. 4t the tlme of
the school's organizatipn, caravans could be seen wending their
way westward on the trail, today this same Santa ¥e Trail, which
1s the main thorofare of the county and which is the only hard
surfaced road across the county, hums with automobiles and trucks.

Council Oak, a meammouth tree in east Council Grove, which
ig over three hundred years old, is generally known as the birth-
place of the Santa Fe Trail. It was here that United States
Commissloners met with chiefs of the Osage Indians, August 10,
1825, and contracted for the right of traders to travel un-
molested through this territory on their way to Santa Fe. A
little farther west, in Council Grove, stands Post Cffice Oak,
which reminds passers-by of old trall days. In & cache in the
tree letters and messages were left for traders who were %o
pass that way.=20

Phe third school in the county was established in Heosho
Township in 1857. This school was established at Priceville
which was about one-half mile west of the present village of
Kelso. The building was a log structure without a floor and
was taught by Miss Sallie Fisher.?L

The fourth school in the county wes organized in Clarks
Cresk Township snd wae known as Distriet No. 4, or Flle. The

school was eshtablished in 1859 in & 1little log building some

50 lerie ignes Olson, The story of Kansas &8 Revealed by Hlat-

° %;ic Plices, Eventsf‘anaﬁgf%u 188, UnpubTlghed Thésis,
Tanoas stote iemchers College, Emporia, Kensus. |

21 B, F. Oregs, Council Grove, Kanses. Personal interview. Mr.
Cregs 1s a pioneer settler in the county.
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distance north of the Stephen Atkinson homestesd. Marion Waters
taught thls school the first two terms, then Lizzie Roma, who

is now living in Chase County, taught the school for two terms.
These early teachers were appointed, there being no board of
education at that time. There compeunsation was smell even though
it included board and lodging, as the teachers first stayed &
week with oue family then with another. In 1864 & new log build-
ing was made for the school at a location sbout one-fourth of

s mile west of the first location. Fred Bexter, & graduate of

K. 8. C. (there being only eight graduates of the college in
that year) taught the first school in the wew building, &
school board was organized at that time, but the teachers still
continued to board sround, even though they were paid a aalary.z?‘

Some 0f the early students at this school were Billy ra’na
Saddie Sherrod, Sarrah (Mrs. W. H. White), Dorothy (Mrs. John
Fleming), and Henry Hemmond, also Charles, Mar tha, Mergaret,
Isaac, and Addison Atkinson.%

Digtricts No. 5 and No. 6 were both organized in the com-
munity north of Council Grove. No. 5, Richie, was and at the
present time 1s located ab out three miles north of Council
Grove on Munkers Creek. District No. 6, Was located abount four
miles north of Richie and was gliven the name of Garfield, These
schools are still rural schools, but their early location gave

them fertile sections of the county and this in turn gave high

55 i, Avoh Johnson, Letimer, Kenseas. PorBonal LNLOTView. Ira.
Johnson came to Clarks Creek in 1866,
£3 Ibid. .
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veluations, thus the two have been made very enterprising schools
0f the county.>¢ -

Stone Chapel, Digtrict No. 7, was erected in 1865 and was
the only school in the north-west part of the county at that
time. That school was awganized in a Swedish gettlement which
had come into this county from Geary County. The most active
settlers 1n its organization were the Eck and Johnson families.25

Morris School, Distriet No. 8, was organized In the Neosho
Valley about midway beléw‘een‘ Council Grove and Kelso. Ackive
settlers in the organization of this school were George Morris,
Billy Bredford, E1i Bird, Andy Bird, and & man named Fisher.
The first teacher in the school was James Heider and some of
the early students were Tom, ELl, Ethel, and Msry Morris; Vie-
torie Rinard; also Maggie, Ham, and Jim Rinard, and the Fisher
children .26

A school, District No. 9, was organized in the settlemeut
which later became Parkerville in 1865. This first school was
located on the old Summers place, now owned by F. A. Ramsey,
near the soutlwest corner of the farm. The bullding was a log
gtructure of the type most populer in the county at that time.
Classes were first conducted in thé: sehool by Iseac Hammond,
and early students enrolled were Helen Burton (Mrs. Geo. Bow-
ger), Tom, George, and Bill Ramsey, and Lou Sharpe (Mrs. Geo.
McAlister). The next teacher was Miss Alice Willlams, sister

of Mrs. Fletcher Cress, with whom she bosrded. There was no

T4 lirs. Wettlie HArris, Oouncil Grove, Kansesd. POrcOn&l LOLer-
view. Mrs, Harris hes teught in Morris County wsince 1895,

25 Ibid.

26 Mrs. Lou Mcdlister, Perkerville, Raunmas. Personsal inter=
view. Mrs, MoAlister came to Morrim COounty in 1860.
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gchoolboard at this early sdiool, nor had there besn at any of
these early schools iun the various settlements in the couaty.
This building continued to be the school, church, Sundsy" school,
and community buillding of the settlement at Parkerville until
1871 when a fine two story stone bullding was erected in the
north part of the then rapidly growing village. From 1870-1880,
this was one of the largest schools in the county as it drew

students from a radiuns of three or four miles.27~

=27 Ibild.
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CHAPTER IV
THE ORGANIZATION OF DISTRICTS

In 1858 Wise County (now Morris) wes organized with the follow-
ing officers elected: Probate Judge, H. J. Bspy; Surveyor, N. S.
Brazleton; Supervisors, T. S. Huffaker, Hervey Munkers, and Lewis
Baum. 2The first full ticket of County officers was elected in
November 186l. 1In 1869 the sentiment toward slavery had changed
from what 1t was in 1865 when the county was named and for that
reason the name of the county was changed to Morris in hc;nor of
Thomas Morris who was United States Senator from Ohio. It had
previously been named Wlse in honor of a southern cel«abrity.l

Prior to 1858 this county had been & municipal township of
the district composed of Wise, Breckenridge, and Madison ,(«féunties.
During this period the Kansas-Nebrasks Bill weg passed making
Kansas a territory. Soon after the passage of this bill Mr.
Reeder was appointed Governor of the newly organized territory
and he, with & full corps of staff officers, came to Council Grove
with the intent of making it the capital of the state. In this
he failed, owing to the fact that the land required for that pur-
pose belonged to the Indians. The next official sct of Governor
Reesder was to call a territorial election in order to elect
legislators. Mr. I. A, Baker, who later operated a newapaper in
Morris Comnty, was elected as one of the legislators but the
"Border Ruffians" trumped up some cause and succeeded in getting

their candidate in the office. The leglslators convened shortly

L F. W, Bleckmar, History Of Kewsas, VolL. 11, PP+ SL9-B80.




3L

afterwerd and at that session divided the territory into eleo~

toral dlstricts and in ths: dlvision the county of Wise (now

Morris) was ereated.2

.

Thus we see that with county administrative organization
reasonably Well establlished, educational organization would be
the next step. Thils began in conformence to Article I, Seoc-
tion VII, of the school law of 1861, which is as followa:5

Whenever a school district shall be formed in any
county, the county superintendent of public instruetion
of such county shall, within fifteen days thereafter,
prepare a notice of the formation of such district, des-
cribing its boundaries end stating the number thereof,
and appointing a time and place for the first district
meeting. He shall cause the notlce thus prepared, to be
posted in at least five public places in the district,
at least ten days before the time appointed for such
meet ing.

And in conformance to Article III, Seotlon V, as follo'ws:4

The inhabiltants, qualified to vote &t & school
district meeting, lawfully assembled, shall have power:
First, 40 appoint a chairman to preside over sald meetings,
in the absence of the director. Second, to adjourn from
time to time. Third, to choose a director, clerk, and
treasurer, who shall possess the qualifications of voters,
as prescribed by the rext section of this aet, at the
first and each annual meeting thereafter. Fourth, %o
deslgnate, by vote, & site for the district schoolhouse.
Fifth, to vote a tax annually, not exceeding one-half of
one per cent on the taxable property of the district, as
the meeting shall deem sufficient, to purchase or leass
a site: Provided, when not included withintthe incorpor-
ated limits of a town or city, seld site shall not con-
tain less then one acre and to build, hire, or purchase
guch schoolhouse, and to keep 1t in repair and to furnish
1t with fuel and appendages. Sixth, to vote a district
tax annually, not exceeding one-fourth of one per cent
on the taxable property in the distriet, for the pay of
teachers wages in the district. Seventh, to authorize
and direct the sale of any school house, site, or other
property belowmging to the district, when the same shall

2 Ibid.
3 Beseion Laws of Kansas, 1861, Article II, Section VII.

4 Ibid., Article III, Section V.
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no longer be needed for the use of the district. Elght,

t0 vote such tax as may be necessary to furnish the

gchoolhouse with blackboards, maps and apparatus necessary

for illustrating the principles of secience, or to dis-
charge any debts or liabilities of the district law-

fully incurred.

Prior to the passasge of this law, there were six schools
being taught in Morris County.” Two of these, District No. 1
and District No. 2, (Brown Jug) were located in Council Grove
and had a larger enrollment than the rest of the cownty com~
bined. District No. 3, or Kelso, which was organized in 1857,
had only a small enrollment even though'the district wéé large,
. there being only fifteen regulérly enrolled students. District
No. 4, was orgenized in 1859 and was located in.the "Far West,"
ags the western part of the county was then referred to. This
district was very loocal in its gathering‘of students as the
Clarks Creek settlement which furnished the students was con-
fined very closely to the fertile valley of the stream. AS
in District No. 3, the enrollmeunt in the: little schoolhouse
was only twelve or fifteen at that time. Districts five and
six were both north of Council Grove and the details of their
organization are a good deal the same as those of Districts
three and four.

These schools, a8 had the settlements before them, follow -
ed the sheltered valleys of the streams, showing thet the chief
occupatior: of the settlers was farming the fertile lands near
the stresams and using the higher land for grasing purposes.6 o

Dur ing the rext five year period ending in 1865 the

number of legally organized districts increased to nine. Dwo

5 John Naloy, History of Morris County, Chapter &v.
6 F. W. Blaokmar, Op. cit., p. 320.
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of these Were also along the Neosho and{ somewhat oentrally
located. DNo. 8, the Morris school was located between ¥elso
and Council Grove, thus showing that the settlement along the
fertile valley of the Neosho wag lnoreasing. With this school
in operation the children along the river were not foreed to
travel any great distance to school, and as the school wes also
uded as & church and Sunday School, the old as well ag the
young people benefitted by its argenization. District Fo. 9,
was also along the Neosho but was looéted six miles up the
river west from Kelso, making the greatest distance betweedphe
two schools three miles. This school was organized in response
to & new settlement which had its begluning in 1858 and 1859,
but which had not felt any great need for & school until 1865.
District No. 7, was organized in a Swedish settlement about
eight miles northwest from Parkerville where District No. 9
was located. This settlement was somewhat over the divide and
the settlers had little relation or contact with the Neosho
Valley settlements, thelr contacts belng chiefly with Junction
City, in Geary County.

By 1870 ten more districts had been wrganized. These
districts were locsted in various sections of the county, so
that there was a school within a reasonable distance of most
of the children of school sge in the county. The southwest
gection of the oounty, however, was rather scantlly settled
and only had two sohool dsbricts, Distriet No. 11 (Diemond
Springs) and District No. 16 known as Six Mile, In fact, as
the following diamgrams will show, there wer@%only four distriote
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gouth of the Neosho River. This can be attributed to the fact
that most of this region is in the "Flint Hillg™ region, and a

grazing region never draws s large population.

Aorrrs Coun 5{/ /B60

o

The above diagram shows the number and locetion of’the
séhoola in Morris County in the yesr 1860. ' These schools had
no dqfinite district boundaries and, except for Councll Grove
schools, the people who sent children fto them payed a part of
the teachers salary. 'hese schools Were all located in the
various valley regions of the county as the settlers in al-
most every dnstance had chosen to settle in the fertile valleys
and ferm the land contained in them. It may also be observed
that settlements were made rather complete on the larger
streams before the smaller streams with less fertile land were

attacked.
The next five year period, that from 1860-1866, does not
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show a great deal of progreés in the matter of establishing schools.
This lack of progress can be accounted for in two ways. Iun the
first place, the Civil War was in progress during these years and
at that time there was very little extended settlement made any-
where and 1ln some frontier settlements there was actually a decline
in the "Westward Movement." In the second place, what settlement
there was tended to £ill in the previously sparcely settled valleys
of the settlements already started. Reasons for this filiing in
of settlements were; first, the fear of Indisns prompted compact
settlements; second, the exaggerated stories of terrible blizz-~
ards, along with the awareness of the poor homes which would have
to be endured, led many %0 seek'thé shelter of the valleys; third,.
the land was more fertile in these previously settled regioﬁs. -
As the following diagram will show, there were, however, thrée
more districts established durimg this period. These districts
were also located in the more fertile valleys of the county, dis-

tricts eight and nine being located in the valley of the Neosho

River. 07/ /S 604//7__@ /065
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During the five year period following the Civil War renewed
interest was taken in the "Westward Movemeunt" and Morris County
along with other sections of the state, received an increaseiin
population. This increase in population led to the establishment
of ten additional schools in the county. The new districts were,
ten, eleven, twelve, thirteen, fourteen, fifteen, sixteen, seven-
teen, eighteen and niﬁeteen. These districts and the settlements
which sponsoi'ad ‘them were somewhat a venture away from the valleys.
During this period three schools were established in the central
part of the county, one in the north-west corner, and two in the
:south-wesﬁ part of the county. Besldes these, there were two
diétficts, thirteen and nineteen, established in the south-central
part of the county, almost in the heart of the "Flint HIlls" sec-
tion of the county, showing that at this period even the grazing
lands of the county were being attacked by the land hungry

t

‘gettlers.

Morrrs Conty /870
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During the years 1870-1885, the number of schor? Aistricts
organized and the number of buildings erected in the county was
greatly increased. There were fifty~one new districts organized
during the peried. Tn 1870 there were nineteen districts in the
county and in 1885 the number had inrreased +o seventf, all of
which were supervised by the county superintendent. It was dur-
ing thils period that the settlers began to inhabit the broad
expanges of prairie land in the comty and to establish schools
in these regiors. At the close of the period (1879-1885) the
settlers wefe no longer in env danger of being attacked by Indlans
nor was there so much fear of blizzards, prairie fires and the
other dangers most common tb frontier life. During the later part
of the period some roads were gmryéyed through the county ard
the people of the entire territory began to possess a "we spirit"
which durings the early part of the perlod had only existed in

the local settlements.
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District Orgenization and Relooatlon of Schools

In many instances schools had been established by settlers
a8 private or seml-private institutions. These schools were loc-
ated for the benefit of only a few individuals snd when the county
was organized and the schools placed in charge of a county super-
intendent, & reorganization of these schools was necessary. The
law goveming this organization or reorganization gave the people
the right to decide on a site for the school. As gsettlements had
grown and moved in certain directions rather than spread in a
circle, it made relocation of the building necessary in many cases.

This relocation of buildings almost emounted to the bullding
of new buildings, és the original ones were nearly all bullt of
logs and they were very difficult to move. This proved to be &
benefit to both teaohefs and pupils, as the new buildings wers,
in most cases, & declded improvement over the ones abandoned. Ex-
amples of this are Council Grove, Clarks Creek, (Far West), Price-
ville, and Parkerville. After school was discontinued in the
Missiﬁn building, Council Grove conducted & school in the east
part of the city and another in the west part, but jn 1865 & new
grade school was erected in order that all the chilildren might be
served more efficlently. At Priceville (Kelso)} Distriet Fo. 3,
the school was first located about one-fourth mile north of the
Laeird's Creek bridge west of Kelso, but with district organiz-
atlon the school locatlon wasg moved to & site some llttle dlstance
eagt of the present village. This, however, was another log
building, and its use was of sghort duration, as the Mlesourl

Kunsas and Texas Rallway Company bullt a line through the community
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in 1869,and a villege sprang up some little distance west of the
gchool. 4as a result of this, the people of the community, with the
approval of the county superintendent, built the present frame
building on a site Just south of the town. The building has since
been remodeled.

"Far West" experienced much the sams conditions as the school
was located twice in log buildings then relocated about one mile
north-east of its first location in a frame building which is still
used as & school.

The first school in Parker township, District No. 9, was also
relocated. In 1865 a school was located in & log bullding in the
gshelter of a hill about one-half mile south-west of the present
school site. This building was also used as a church, Sunduy achool,
and community building for the settlers. In 1869, however, the
reilroad, which had scted as an incentive toward the bullding of
a new school in ¥elso, was built through Parkerville community.
Following this the village began to take shape, it being organized
in 1871, and a school site chosen in the north-east part of the
town. On this site was buillt & fine two-story stone bullding
which cost $3,500. This building burned in 1913 and the preseut
bungalow type brick building was buillt on the same playground the
following year.

These same conditions hold true for numerous other distrlets
in the county, in that whenever boundary changes led to reloocatlon
of buildings 1t meant the A&ilscarding of the old log &nd aocd school
bulldings which were so numerous in ploneer duys. Theme new

bulldings, together with the equipment which was placed in then,
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increased the value of school proverty to & decided degree between
1860-1933.

A8 in Parkerville, the same was true for many of the other
districts of the county, that 1s, whenever boundary changes led
to relocation of the building 1t meant the discarding of the old
log and sod school bulldings which were so common in the early
school ‘days of Morris County. These new buildings, together With
the equipment which was placed in them, increased the ﬁalue,@f‘~
school property enormously between the years 1860-195§; as méy

be seen by the following graph:
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1865 60 65 70 %5 BO B85 90 95 O 5 10 15 20 2B B30 35

Graph No. l1: Interpret graph thus: 1In the vertical ¢olumn
will be found the elementary sohool property valuations,
while the horizontel line shows the period of yeers surveyed.

This growth or educational development is further ashown by

- the 1lnorease 1n the number of bulldinge in the sene period of

years ap weg covered in the previous graph.
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1855 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 0 5 10 15 20 25 30 B5

Graph No. 2 Interpret graph thus: In the vertical column
will be found the number of elementary school districts,
while the horizontal line will show the period of years
gurveyed.

These graphs bear out the fects previously gtated that the
period from 1870~1885 was the greatest period of sducational
growth the county had experienced or did experience until the
period followlng the passage of the law of 1915 legallilzing the

Rurel High Sohool. The year 1870 was known 88 "Bmlgrant Tean."
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With 1t came prosperity and also the great increase in the number
of rural schools. This increase became lesg pronounced by 1885

and from then to 1890 the rate of increase was on the average of
about tWo schools a year, while in the period from 1870~1885, the

increase had been nearly four schools per year.

Educational Growth From 1885 o the Present Time

Following 1885 educational progress in the county was more &
matter of quality than of quanity. By this time practically all
the districts in the county were organized, theres only being nine-
teen additional districts added in the forty-eight years since
1885. Furthermore most of these districts, were organizéd in the
ten years following 1885.

With the organization and equipment of districts in the county
almost complete, efforts were then turned toward higher education
in the county and much was accomplished in the matter of increased
enrollment and in the curriculum offered iun secondary school
courses. Following this advancement in secondary education, the
county school system began to become top-heavy in that the work of
the rural schools was not being made broad and strong enough to )
support the work that was being done in the more advanced schools.7

Realilziung this, the legislators passed a law providiﬁé for
the appointment of rural-school supervisors, with the ildea of
standardizing the rural schools of the state. Requirements weme
set up and rural dlstricts were encouraged through addresses, teach-

. . 8
ers meetings, and conventions to meet these requirements.. One

¥ Twenty-fourth Biennial Report, State Superintendent oL PublLic

Instruction, 1923-24, p. 13.
8 Mwentieth Biennial Report, State Superintendent of Public Instr-

uction, p. L2,

12748
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outstending need in order to meet these requiremeunts was the im-
provement of rural school buildings, as most of them had besn

built in pioneer years drdwere antiquated, even though they were
the best, in many cases, that could be had at the time they were
bullt. Adeguate librarieé, rlayeround equipment, snd Sanitary
conditions about the school, as well as special teacher qualifi-
cations were also stressed. Up to this time, however, criticism
had been most commonly directed toward the efficlency of the
teaching and the quality of the work being done. That this gqual-
ity of work was not the best cannot be denied, but a year's ob-
servation by these supervisors convinced them that the quality
of work .belng done by the teachers was far superior to the phys-
ical conditions of most of the schools,®

The efforts of these supervisors was to a iarge extent res-
pousible for this new period of educational advancement in the
county.

In 1916 the first standard school of the county, District
No. 18 was approved. The building and equipment’of this school
acted as & stimulus to other districts and by 1918 there were
fourteen districts standardized. By 1920 two more districts met
these reguirements. At the present time there are sixteen stan-
dard schools, one superior school and four accepted schools in
the county.lo
| While only about twenty-five per cent of the schools of the
county have been made standard, yet the use of the plan has hdd

the gradual results of affecting the entire elementary school

9 Ibid.
10 Report of county superintendent, Morris County, Kansas, Apzrll

1983.
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system of the county. The plan has served as a measuring stick,
as well as an incentive for better schools. Further, it has made
teachers, school‘officers, and patrons better informed as to the
necessities of & good school. Again as one school has the stamp
of approval pleced upon i%t, neighboring districts felt the urge
for improved school conditions.ll

This new period of educational growth and developmens, from
the standpoint of building and equipment valuation, is borne out
by the fact that in 1900 rural school proverty valuation in the
county was {9L,000; in 1910, $97,000; in 1915, ¢129,645; and in
1930, $L79,075. Further proof that this increased value of school
property 1is not just in estimated property valuation lies in the
fact that taxaeble valuation in Morris County inecreased only about
twenty per cent between 1915 and 1930, while the value of school
property increased approximately forty per cent during this same
period.lz |

The year 1885 saw some important changes in the certific-
ation laws, in that uniformity of examinations was called for as
was 1ndorsement of county certificates for use in other counties,
and the use of temporary certificates. This act also provided
that the questions for teachers examinations be made by the State
Boaurd of HEducation. |

Professional certificates were created by an act passed in
1903. These were certificates of higher qualifications and were
simply added to the three grades of county certificates already

in existance. This professional certificate was, however replaced

11 Twentieth Blennial Report, state wuperintendent of Instructilon,

L1915, p. 18.
12 Twentieth Biennial Report.
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by the first grade county certificate in 1911. In this year
high school credit was demanded as & prerequisite for obtaining
first grade certificates, The third grade county certificate
which had been issued in 1876, was eliminated in 1925, thus
further raising the teacher qualifications in the county. Re-
guirenients at that time were raised for the first grade certifi-
cate to sixteen mounths teaching experience and four years work
in an accredited high school. Requirements for a second grade
certificate were hardly so stringent as neither a four ysar

course in an accredited high school nor any teaching experilence

wes d.emanded.l5

1% Teward F. fisn, Developumeut of Teaching Tralning in Kansas.
Unpublished Master's Thesls, Kansas Stete Teachers College,
Emporia, Kanses, 1932, p. 33.
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TEACHER TRAINING

Early Teacher Qualifications

Teacher qualifications in Morris County, as iu the state ag a
whole, hayehad a seemingly slow growth. This, however, cannot be
entirely blamed on the county, as the state has been very lax in
its requirements. Moral character was practically the only qual-
ification necessary for the early teacher, and even this was great -
ly overshadowed by family prestige.

Barly iv the history of the state, certificated teachers were
reéognized as a necessity and only five months after the state was
admitted to the union a law was passed, which made éertification
mandatory for public gchool teachers. This law, which was passed
in May 1861, reads as follows:l

...He (the County Suverintendent) shall examine annually,
all persons offering themselves as teachers of common schools
of the county, in regard to moral character, learning, and
abllity to teach school, and he shall give to each person
examined and found qualified to teach, a certificate, signed
by himself, officially, and any person receiviung such cerst-
ificate, shall be deemed a qualified teacher, within the
meaning of this act.

Thus we see that the county superintendent became the all
powerful educational figure of that time. Educational qualific-
ations, as we are familiar wlth them today, were unknown. He
might grant certificates to any persons, who in his judgment

alone, were of "good moral character, and possessed learning and

ability to0 teach school."

1 Seggion Laws of Ranses, 1861, Chapter 76, p» 2b9.
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This law to gome extent limited the cholce of teachers in the

county &and to some extent selected them sz to training, but in

reality the quality of teachers was only slightly improved.

Follqwing this act which constituted the teacher certific-

ation system of Famsas in 1364, an amendment was passed by the

legislature which, although not exerting any strengthening force

on the law already in force, dld systemetize the examinations

to

some extent. This amendatory act provided that the‘county super-

intendent2

«+sdesignate a particular time and place, in the

spring and fall of each year, for a general examination of
teachers. Any teacher failing to be present at such gen-

~eral examination shall, on special examination, pay to

the county superintendent one dollar, on receipt of the
certificate.

Later, in 1867, another amendmeunt eliminating the special

examing tion and providing for examinetions to be held quarterly,

on the first Baturday of the months of Januwary, April, July, and

October . Thié act stated that the public examination be held:

+v:8t the county seat, on the first Saturday of Jan-

3

uary, and every three months thereafter of -each year, aud

at such other times as was necessary in order to fill vac
ancies occurring since the last regular examination, and

no case shall he receive a fee for granting teachers cerst
ificates, nor shall he hold a private examination.

in

With this making public of the teachers examinatlons and the

elimination of private examinations, a great sfep forward was
made in establishing quslifications for teachers.

Again in 1869 the legislature, hoping to further improve
téacher qualifications, passed a law which made the following

2 Sessglon Laws of Kensas, L1864, Ohapter 100, ps LB6B.
3 Segslon Laws of Kansgsa, 1867, Chavnter 123, p. 209.
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changes:4

The County Superintendent and two competent persons,
to be appointed by the county commissioners, shall coun-
stitube a county examining board. The boerd shall public-
ly examine, at such places and times as they see f£it,
giving ten days notice of the same, all candidates propos-
ing to teach in the county, incorporated towns and clties
accepted, as to their competency and capaclty to teach
all the branches required to be taught in common schools;
and if the application is for graded schools, candidabes
shall be examined as to their competency and capacity of
the applicant to teach and govern such school, and that
he is of good moral character, the board of examiners
shall give a certificate accordingly.

By the provisions of this act, the power of certification
was taken from the hands of the county superintendent and placed
with the county board of examiners as it is today. Graded cert-
ificates were also brought into being by the provisions of this
law, although the basis on which they were graded was not stated.

This law remained in force, without amendment until 1876
when several amendments greatly streungthening the certification
syst em were enacted.. This act provided that:d

Certificates issued by the counbty board shall he of
three grades A, one and two, and shall continue in force
respectively two years, one year, and six mouths, accord-
ing to grade. Those of the A grade shall certify that
the person o0 whom the certificate is given ig qualified
to teach orthography, reading, writing, English grammer,
geography, arithmetic, United States History, bookkeeping,
industrial drawing, the elements of etimology, the elem-
ents of botany, and the elements of geology as far as
relates to the formation of soils and their adaption to
production. Certificates of grades one and two shall
certify that the person to whom such a certificate 1s
given is qualified to teach orthogruphy, reading, writing,
Engl ish grammer, arithmetic, and United States History.

Five years later, in 1881, the certificatlion system was
completel y revised by a lew which repealed the act of 1876 and

made meny pertinent changes in the certification laws. The

4 Seaslon Lawsg of Kansag, 1869, Uheap ter 86, p. L78.
5 Sesslon Laws of Kansss, 1876, Chepter 122, p. 257.
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lause which specified that a third grade certificate may not be
warded to the same person twice was a manifestation of the states
osire that teachers improve themgselves while engaged actively in

eaching in the public schools.

The Orgenization of Institutes

The movement for teacher institutes had its origination in
onnecticut in 1839. The movement spread westward and entered
ansas 1in 1864, during her third year of statehood. The estab-
ishment of these institutes represented a great advance in
eacher training in the various organized counties of the stabe,
s,the sarly certification laws had made no provision for any
ort of teacher training to be giveun to the teachers of the public
chools. This form of training was especially valuable toﬂthe
eachers because 1t provided a means by which they were able to
aise their professional requirements and qualifications and
hus improve themselves as teachers.

The Creation of a County Institute

The legislative act creating the Normal District Institube,
ag passed in 1864, and was the first act in the history of the
tate, besides the Normal School law of 1863, which provided for
he tralning of teachers. The act-reads:6

The Superintendent of Public Instructlon, with the

County Super intendent, shall orgenize and hold a teachers

institute each yesr, 1n each senatorial district of the

state; provided, board shall be promised free of charge
to all EEe teachers and members of the institute during

the session, by the citizens of the place where the in-
stitute is held.

Sesgion Laws of Kansag, 1864, Chapter lOL, p. L87.
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This legislative act, although merely promising that in-
stitutes be held in different parts of the state each year, marks
the beginning of the county institutes. Institutes were held
under this law for a period of five years hefore another law was
enacted which really provided for the County Imstitute. This
law provided that 1n addition to the Normal District Institute
conducted by the State Superintendent that :7

...the county superintendent of each county maintain-
ing fifteen schools during the year, shall hold a county
institute, for not less than two nor more than five days,

and shall preside over the same, making all necegsary

arrangements therefore. Two or more counties may unite

in holding such an institute.

It was under the provisiouns of this law of 1864 that Morris
County organized its first institute in 1864 with an eunrollment
of twenty-four teachers. These laws were passed as a resgult of
the demands of the legislators of the State for experienced,
qualified teachers. To secure these, one of the cheapest and
most efficlent agencies was the Teachers Institute. The object
of these institutes was to drill teachers and applicants for
teachilng positions upon the various subjects taught in the schools
and in the best methods of teaching them. Also to teach the best
methods of conducting and dilsciplining & school. The method used
in presenting this material was chlefly the lecture method.s

In holding these institutes, some convenient central plsace

was selected where the people of the community would furnish,

gratig, entertaiument for the teachers. It was usually figured

7 Segslon Laws™ of Kansag, 1869, Uhapter 86, p. LB4.
8 Fifth Annusl Report of Superintendent of Public Instruction,

S
p . 43"44:-
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that where these institutes were held, that the interest which
the meeting worked up in the school, wherever they were held,
would more than repay the c¢itizens for their hogpitality. Follow=-
lng the exemple of the neighbor county, Lyon, which organized
the first institubte in the State, Morris County organized its
first institute in 1864.°

Under this law no certainity of success of an institute was
lnsured, asg it was optional for teachers to attend, asnd as in-
struction was weak, teachers were reluctant to attend. This
being the case, little good Was attained from the inmstitutes uubil
1869 when a new law obviated~ the dlfficulty by requiring teach-
ers to attend the county lustitutes and provided that any persons
engaged Iin teaching ap the time should not forfeit any part of
their salary by such attendance. The principle was felt to be
correct, because an iunstitute properly conducted was thought to
be of more benefit to the community‘than the time lost by the
teachers mttending.lo V

This first institubte was conducted by Joab Spencer, who was
county sgperintendent at that time. Gpencer was a minister and
teacher and attempted to give lustruction in the subject matter
with which the students or teachers would be confronted. dJ. H.

Bradford conducted institutes in & similar manner in 1865, 1866,

1867, and 1868.-%

In these first institutes 1t was hard to get capable 1n-

structors, as there was no fhnd from whioh to pay them. During

9 Ibid.

10 IbId.
11 John Maloy, History of Kangas, Ohapter XV,
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the vacations some of the county's most able lecturers and in~
structors volunteered their services gratuitously, some even bear-
ing theilr own expehses. Provision was soon made, howaver, from
different funds to raise these instructors a small salary.l2

The law of 1869 made attendance compulsory and at this time
small ssalaries were set aside for instructors. With the passing
of this law, teacher training through institutes was improved up-
on, but it was not until 1877, following the reorganization law,
thet teacher training through institutes became to any high de-

gree effective.

Reorganization of County Instituteé
In 1877 by state legislation the status of County Institutes
was entirely changed. This act took the countrol of the institutes,
as far as management was concerned, out of the hands of the state
superintendent and delegated this control %o the county superin-

tendent of each county holding the institute. The act thus re-

organizing the system follows:15

Section 1. The county superintendent of public instr-
unetion shall hold annually, in their respective counties,
for a term of not less than four weeks, a normal institute
for the instruction of teachers znd those desiring to
teach: Provided, that in the sparcely settled portions of
the sta%e, two or more counties may be united in holding
one normal lnstitute, as hereinafter provided.

Section 2. The county superintendent of public instr-
uction, with the advice and consent of the state superin-
tendent of public instruction, shall determine the time
and place of holding such normal lnstltutes, and shall
gelect a conductor and instruotows for the same: Provided,
that no person shall be pald from the instltute finds for
gervices as conductor or ilmstructor of gald institute, who
has not received a certificate board of examiners as %o

L2 Fifth Annual Report of =uperintendent of Publlic Iustruction,
D & Oi’ﬁl
13 SessTon Laws of Kansas, 1369, Chapter 10L, p. 187.
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his speclal qualificatlons for the work.

Section 3. To defray the expenses of sald institute
the county superintendent shall require the payment of &
fee of one dollar from each candidate for a county cert-
1ficate, and the payment of one dollar reglstration fee
for each person attending the normal institute; and the
board of county commissioners mey svpropriate, as may by
them be deemed necessary for the further support of such
lnstitutes: Provided, such appropristion does not in one
year exceed the sum of one hundred dollars.

Bsection 4. The fund thus created shall be designated
the Normal institute fund and the county treasurer shall
be the custodian of the fund.

Section 5. The county superintendent shall, monthly,
and at the close of esach institute, transmit to the couanty
treasurer all money received by him, as provided in section
three, together with the name of each person to contributing,
and the amount; and the county treasurer shall place all
guch moneys to the institute fund.

Section 6. It shall be the duty of the state super-
intendent of public instruction, annually, when fifty
persons have reglstered for that year as members of any
normel instiltute organized under the provisions of this
act, and have paid the required registration fee, to cert-
ify the same to the auditor of the state, who shall forward
to the county treasurer of sald county an order on the treas-
urer of the state for the sum of fifty dollears, to be paild
out of any money appropriated for that purpose; which amount
the county treasurer shall place to the credit of the normal
institute fund, and the sum of three thousand dollars, or
80 much there of as may be required, is here by appropriated
for the purposes herein named for the fiscal year ending
June thirteenth, eighteen-hundred and seventy-eight, and
the same amount for the fiscal year ending June thirteenth
eighteen hundred and seventy-nine.

Section 7. Al)l dlsbursements of the normal institute
- fund shall be drawn upon the order of the county superin-
tendent; and no order shall be drawn on saild fund except
for claims approved by the county superintendent for
gservices rendered or expenses lncurred in connection with
the normal inst itute.

Section 8. Fach county superintendent of public in-
gtruction gshall, immediately after the passage of the act,
and hereafter before entering on the duties of his office,
execute a bond to the state of Kanmsas in the sum of one
thousand dollars, with one or more sureties, which bond
sggi& be approved by the ocounty clerk, and filed 1ln his
0: e,

Seation 9. Two or more oocuntles, each having less
than three thousand inhabltants, may be untled in holding
one norimal Ingtitute, with the ocmmeent and by the dlrect-
lon of the staete superintendent of publio iuetruction:
Provided, +that the several county superiutendents of the
countles thus unlted shall choose one of thelr number to
act for them in determining the place and time of holding
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hat bhe. treasurer of Tho seenty La viioh the iinh BERTAIES:

held shall be the custodien of the normel institute fund

to whom the state and county appropriations for the benefit

of the normal institute shall be transmitted, and to whom

the several county super intendents of the couunties thus
ggégigﬁ 2%?éé.transmit the fees collected as provided in

It was in accordance with this law that the institute in
Morrils County really became an effective teacher training agency.
Institutes have been held in the county slnce 1864, though uot
under the direct supervision of the county superintendent until
1877, and as the law said that the institute should be not less
than two nor more than five days in length, 1t may be seen that
little was accomplished in the way of teacher training in these
institutes.

With the passage of the new law, that of 1877, the specifi-
cation was made that the institute be held for & minimum term of
four weeks. In holding the institute for aperiod of four weeks,
it was presumed that there woarld be ample time in whieh the teach-
ers in attendance could be glven excellent instruction in the
branches taught in the public schools. Another impértant section

of this law is that in which provision is made Bor the certifi-
cation of the conductors and ilnstructors of institutes by the
gtate board of examiners. This provision supposedly lnsures %thet
the instructors include only those who are gualified to impart
the best of instruction to the teachers attending the Instltutes.

This law of 1877 remained on the statutes approximately as
1t was written until 1905 and duriung this period the status of
the teachers in Fansas, as well as in the county lnoreased %o an
extent which has scarcely been equalled by any teacher training

agency since established.
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sSummary

County certifiloat ion of teachers in Kansgas was begun shortly
after Kansas was adnmitted as & state in 1861l. Ithas undergone a
slow but constant and graduel change, there being very few sessions
of the legislature in which the law regulating the ilssuance of
certificates has now been changed to some extent. These changes
have geuerally been for higher standards of certification and for
the educational benefit of each county under the educational con-
trol of the state.

The certification of teachers in Morris County, as well as
in other counties may be divided into several periods, each of
which represents an important change over the one preceding it.
The first of these perionds, 1861-1869, may be called the period
of the county superintendent. During these eight years the county
superintendent was the all powerful filgure in issuing certificates
and passing on the qualificatlions of a candidate. He examined any
one pregenting themselves for examination and was the only Jjudge
as to the qualifications of the candidate.

In 1869 the firgt county board of examiners was created py
the leglislsture, thus taking some of the powers from the county
superintendent. It was made the function of this board to examine

the candldates for county certificates aund to grant certificates
t o those cendidates Wwho had successfully passed the examinations.
LUhis board exists at the present time and its functione have changed
but little during the sixty years it hes been in exlastence.

the state legleslature wes not content with passing legis-
lation making teacher certlfication more difficult., They early
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provided for teacher training agencies culled institutes. At
Tirst these were located in judicisl districts, but in 1869 an
institute was required in each county with = population of over
3,000, at thit time attendance was made compulsory and the county
institute was made: cousiderable more effective. Then with the

léw of 1877 requiring each institute to be conducted for a period
of four weeks (twenty days) and examinations given at the close

of each institute, greater interest and more effective training
wes lmmediately noted.

During the period of years between 1877 and 1918, the effi-
ciency of the teaching foroe of the county was greatly improved.

In 1918 the first profegssional institute in the comhty was
conducted. This type of institute is still belng used in the
county and consists chiefly of the lecture type, there being
four or five instructors who lecture through fifty minute periods
on subjects dealing more with methods than with the subject matter
branches of lustruction.

In some counties the first real impulse toward education
dates from the first ilnstltute held in them. Not only has the
enthusiasm of teachers for their profession been kindled by
them, their ideals enlarged, and thelr knowledge of methods in-~
creagsed, but the interest of parents generally and also the public
has been awakened by them in behalf of the common cauge of
gducation.

They have saved many an ilnexperienced teacher from despond-
sncy and failure. They have sent many weary teaschers back to the
schoolroom filled with new insplration and hope. They have impart-

ed to esach one the c¢ollected wisdom and experienae of the group.
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CHAPTER VI

REPORTS OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS AND OTHER
SCHOOL OFFICIALS

In this chapter it is the purpose of the author to quote the

wrltten statements of others, in order to show the opilnions of

authorities who were directly in contact with the educationeal

situations and development during the period of years included in

this study. Further, their reports will verify the statements

of the author or bring to light any biased opinions or prejudices

~Which may have been written into this study.

Some of the reports from district olerks are very im-
verfect. Nuch of the tax reported wes levied per capita.

The books recommended by you will be adopted in every
school this year.

Joab Spencer, County Supt.
Council Grove, Morris County
Nov. 9, 1863.1

There seems t0 be & general degsire throughout the
country to procure well qualified teachers, and the people
generally are alive to the subject of educatlion.

J. H.Bradford, County Supt.
Council Grove, Morris County
No. 8, 1865.2

A greater interest has heen shown the past year, in
the cause of public schoolg, than any previous year since
its organization as a county. 4s & general thing better
teachers have been employed and the schools have been
better attended. The people show a willingness to vote
taxeg, and as a general thing, elect, for school officers,
men who manifest an interest in eduwcation.

J.H.Bradford, County Supt.
Council Grove5 Morris County
Dec. b, 1866.

1" Third Annual Report of ouperintendent of Fublic Tustruction, Kan-

P
3

sag, 1B63=70,77p. .
ifth Annuul Report of Superintendent of Publle Iustruction, Fan-
I§6E"m, P' 45"44:- )
Sixth Annusl Report of Superintendent of Public Imstruction, Kan-
Sas, 1863-70, p. £9.
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Owing to the imperfeot reports of the clerks of the
various districts, my report is not so full or complete as
1 had desired it to be. A Ffew new districts, lately organ-
1zed, have made no report at all. Again we have perhaps
one-third of the richest valley land of the agounty occupiled
by the Kaw Indians, for which & treaty is made, and only
yaiting thg convening of congress for its ratification.
This dlsability being removed and that natural law obtain-
ed, fixing positively separate education for white and
colored children and further by passing an equitable law
showing no greater favor to black than to poor white child-
ren {who are compelled to be educated in common schools)
that they shall (the blacks) draw simply their proportion
of the public funds and then they may have full and perfect
Schools. But as 1t is at present, one ill disposed negro,
alded by vicious white persons, may destroy half a dozen
schools in the county during the school year. Those small
evils rectified we have a bright prospect before us. Tired
of those teachers who take up & winter school because 1t
'is too cold to plow, the people are demanding thorobred
teachers.

‘ Our county seat graded school building is almost com-
pleted, at a cost of from twelve to fifteen thousand dollars,
and from the present prospects there will, in & short time
be a good school house erected in every district in the
county.

J. H. Bradford, County Supt.
Council Grove, Morris County
Nov. 1O, 1887.

There is great improvement since last year, with a
8till brighter prospect. We have been laboring under the
gserious disadvantage of having seven-eights of the land of
the county withdrawn from the market for seversal years,
for the benefits of the railroads and the Indians, leaving
the settlements so situated that the schools are necessarily
small, although the districts are large. The Unlon Pacific,
or Neosho Valley Road, will be completed within the next
thirty days, and the Indians will probably be removed with-
in the next six months, which will open up country to settle-
ment, and give educational matters & new impetus. BSince
the last report four new districts have been formed, and
three new schools erected. The total number of distriats
now is seventeen. The teachers wages saverage less than if
the new districts could have raised funds for a summer:
gesslon otherwise than by subscription. Under these cir-
cums tances one of our beat teachers took a achool for the
gake of getting it started.

4 Seventh Anmnual Report of Superintendent oi Public Instrustion,
I863—~§5, Pe 90, '




61

I would puggest that the state superintendent establish
a uniform system for the grade of the teachers certificates
for use throughout the state.

A. J. Beach, County Supt.
Council urgve, Morris County
Nov. 1868.

Our county 1s sparcely settled. The school districts
large and many of the school houses poor. The people, how-
ever, are mr gressive, anxiouvs to have good schools and
willing to pay liberly for their smpport, so we need not
hope in vain. During the past year Perkerville has erecked
a fine two gstary stone building at a cost of $3,500. Joint
District No. 33, has completed a fine stone house, and four
obther Qdistricts have voted bonds and are bullding schools.

Ourggreatest need is efficlent progressive teachers,
those who believe in Teachers Institutes and Journals, and
in the meximum, Never to 0lLd to Learn, I sometimes feel
that something should be done to prohibit district boards
from conbtracting to teach with persons not licensed to
teach. The law withholding the public fund seems insuffi-
cient. Why not provide for the supplying of districts with
unabridged dictionaries by withholding e portion of the
state fund. I am decidedly in favor of the district offic~
ers being elected for a term of three years, one each year.

C. B. Isham, County Supt.
Council Grgve, Morris County
Nov. 1871.

The clerks reports are deficient to a great extent,
many of the reports required to be filled, caunnot, owing
to the facts above stated. It will be observed, however,
that great progress has been made during the past year.
Ouxr people are alive to the call. The school buildings
are commodious, commanding in appearance, and well furniamh-
ed, respecting seats and desks. We hold associations
monthly, add institutes semi-annually. These have beenm
decidedly succesgsful.

J. B. Mimmey, County Supt.
Council Grove, Morris County
1873.7

Notwithetanding the grasshoppers, ohinchbugs, and Ary

5 Ninth Annual Report of Super infendent of Publlc Instruction,
- "75, Pe 14 "{
leventh Annual iegort of Superintendent of Public Instruct-~

ot

lon, Kensas, LS87L-75, p. 1E8.
7 Thirteenth sunual Report of Superintendent of Public Ingtr-

lmad

Tctlion, Kengag, L873-76, DPs LL6.
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weather of the past year, each district has held at least oune
segslon, and a large majority have contlnued as usual. Seveu
digtricts have been organized and four houses dbullt during
the year. The number of school children is one hundred and
elghteen more than in 1874. The clerks report almost univ-
ersally, that owing to the manner in which the district brea-
surers have kept thelr books they (the clerks) cannot get

an accurate report. I would suggest that the office of
district treasurer be abolished, and the township ox county
treasurer be the custodian of district moneyy Morris

County aloune, owing to the straw bonds glven by the district
treasurers, looses annually not less than five hundred
dollars. Why, glr, the district treasurers-a lot of them -
use the money to pay thelr taxes aund other debts openly, and
who, I ask, even if the money could be collected by process
of law, wants to be continually lawing with his neighbors?
"No," they say, "true," he has used the monsy, but we will
not elect him again and get rid of him as easily as possible,
while the district is at & loss of from fifty to two hund-
red and fifty dollars; whereas, if county treasurers held

the money, the sums would justify bonds and be more safe.

You gee that we are making steady progress respecting
gchool facilitiegs and that there continues a growing in-
terest in favor of education. A larger number of schools
will be in session in ouwr county than ever before. The
demand for first class teachers 1g increasing. Educationally
and financially we ®eel much elated.

J. E. Minney, Countg Supt.
Council Grove 1875.

The slope of our county would counflict with the town-
ship system of districting, as in meny instances the settle-
ments follow the water courses, the pupils would be compelled
to travel, in winter, over the exposed prairie ridges, where-
as as 1t now is, districts are formed with the view of avoid-
ing such exposure.

The theory is good of the district purchasing books,
but it is rather expensive in practise.

The compulsory school law is a dead letter end should be
erased from the statues or made more explicilt making 1t the
imperat ive duty of someone to enforce it. We do not know
who suggeated the passage of the law of grading the first
or "R" grade of certificate. Uniformity throughout the
state is degirable, but if in counection with the common
branches, United 3tates Higtory had been introduced we
think 1t would have been much more to the educational in-
terests of the state. This thing of arranging before the
public a great calkalogue of sclences as the requirements
.0f those 1lu authority, in order to get certificates, is

g Fifteenth Armusl Report Of puper lntendent of PublLic Instructlon,
Ransas, L874-76, D» 84.
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no criterion of the high culture we would wish others to
think we had attained too.

« E. Migney, County Supt.
Gounoél Grove, Morris County.
1876

The numerous reports of the different County Superinteqdenﬁs
of the county dwr ing the period of years from 1861-1878 shows =a
decided upward trend in the educational growth of the county. It
ghows that although the growth, as was the settlement, was slow,
at first, yet¥always in a forgward direction. These reports have
also shown the eagerness of the settlers to have their children
educated and their willingness to be taxed %o where the burden
was more than half of their entire tax burden.

The people of Morris County are not behind that of any
other couwnty in the attention given to the education of their
children, and in furnishing ample facilitles for the advance-
ment of education. School taxes, although the heaviest the
tax payer is ocalled upon to pay, are always payed cheerfully,
and hence it is that a stranger passing through the county
sees the prairie dotted with so meany schoolhouses.

There are in the county 63 school districts and 62
schoolhouses, of which seven are built of stone, fifty-three
are frame and one of logs. The number of pupils enrolled
during the yesr 1882, wag 2,509. The average daily attend-
ance was 1,539. There were employed, during the yesar,
seventy teachers, of whom thirty-one were males and thirty-
nine were females. The average galary per month for males
was $32.15 and for females $28.75. The couuty superintendent
(F. P. Nichols) reports that the schoolrooms were well
supplied with maps, globes, charts, dictionaries, and all
other apparatus known to advance and assist the pupils in
their studies, and give them a clearer understanding of the
subjects involved in their lessons.lO

The following table of school statistics will bear out the

previous quotation, as well as show from a statistical point of

¥ Six%teenth Annual Report of superintendent of PUBLLC InStruch-
lon, Kansas, L874-76, p. 49.
10 T, A. Andreas, History of Kansas, p. 796.




64

view, the educational development of Morris County from 1861-1933.

TABLE SCHOOL STATISTIOS 1861-1933 (Elemeuntary
. 3chools)
Years No. school Months in Amount Pald Value of all
districts Term Teachers gchool property

1861 - -—- -—- -
1862 . 6 3.0 $ =253 $ 875
1863 6 4.5 597 1,050
1864 9 5.0 739 1,105
1865 9 5.0 1,397 1,500
1866 9 4.5 1,604 2,075
1867 8 3.4 2,250 4,000
1868 14 4.3 2,660 11,579
1869 17 4.9 3,237 15,000
1870 19 5.5 3,302 19,214
1871 20 5s2 0 mmmma 22,085
1872 29 7.0 = —em-- 26,974
1873 36 4.8 5,531 38,038
1874 37 6.0 =em=== meeaa-
1875 44 5.0 = —eme- 52,000
1876 45 6.0 = ===a- 50,110
18177 47 6.7 8,058 49,637
1878 - bl 6oL 9,724 50,616
1879 51 6.2 0 ~--—= 50,516
1880 66 6.2 10,800 55,400
1885 70 6.5 15,900 57,700
1890 81 6.5 18,000 81,000
1900 86 7.1 20,500 90,000
1910 89 7.1 25,500 97,000
1920 89 8.1 - 33,800 128,000
1930 89 8.1 61,000 179,000
1938 89 8.1 50,100 145,000

The above table was compiled from Annual and Bleunial Reports
of the Superintendent of Public Instruction %o the Governor over
the period of years from 1861-1933. The table shows the number
of schools in the county, the ochildren of school age (five to
twenty-one years), the length of the school term in months, the
smount pald the teachers per yeer, and the velue of all school
property. The table bears ouf the previous statements and graphs
ag to the periods of greatest educational growth experisenced in

the county in the elementary schools.



65

CHAPTER VII
SECONDARY EDUCATION IN MORRIS COUNTY
Barly efforts toward secondary education
The publlc high school movement had its begiuning in Amer-

ica in the third decade of the ninetesnth century and had estab-
lished itself firmly by the last quarter of that century. Previsus
t0 1840 very few high Schools existgd in the United States. Mass-
achusetts had been the leader in this high school movement and
had eighteen high slchools. Within the next two decades (18404
1860) the movement spread rapidly, especially in.Massaqhusetts,
Ohio, and New York, and by 1880 there were approximately eight
hundred of these secondary schools in the United States. The
period from (1870~1890) is kunown as the period of growth and dev-
elopment of the high school, and the period from 1890 to the
present time as the period of the dominance of the public high
gchool in the field of secoundary education.l

| It was during this veriod of growth and development, in
fact in 1885, when the first public high school in Morris County
wes organized. This was just thirty-five years after the Meth-
odist Episcopal Church had established the mission school for
the Xaw Indians. This first high school in the county was estab-
lished In Couneil Grove, as had been the first elementary school
for white children in the county. The superintendent of schools
&t that time was E. W. D. Brothers. Mr. Brothers aud the Board
of Educution at that time saw fit to offer but two years train-

1 %Bf?igzngliﬂ, rrinciples of Secondary Educatiow, Chapter ¥, po "
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ing and that was chlefly in mental discipline subjecte, as at
that time the belief still exlsted that one of the chief purposes
of the school was the disclplining of the mind. Some of these

mental dlscipline subjects were Latin, algebra, geometry, and
lLiterature. All of thew: were considered of great cultural value.
Mr. Brothers had one assistant in the school, and the two of them
had under their Jjurisdiction forty-eight students, all of whom
were freshmen and sophmores. Many of these first students later
became teachers and business men of the county.

Mr. Brothers superintended the school until 1889, when he
was succeeded by J. W. Quay, Mr. Quay, &lso, had only one assis-
tant as the eurollment had risen slowly, there being‘only fifty-
four studeunts enrolled at thd: time, more than half of whom were
boyas, as had been the case when Mr. Brothers was superiutendent.z

J. M. Rhodes succeeded Mr. Quay as superintendent and held
that position until 1893 when he was replaced by Miss Margaret
Mack, who held the position until 1896. She too had only one
essistant even though the enrollment had grown to eighty by‘this
time.5

In 1895 B. F. Nihart succeeded Miss Mack. Another member
was added to the faculty that year and other subjects were added
t0 the curriculuﬁ. E. E. Bdgerton followed Nihart in 1897 and
held the position as superintendent until 1903. During this time
the curriculum was ilnoressed to & three year course and the en-

rollmeut increased to uinety. In 1903, A. M. Thoroman was hired

T LOnuEL Report of BLete Super Intenient Lo Goveruor, 1879-1885.

3
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a8 superintendent and the course extended to & four year coursge. -
Thoromen was succeeded in 1909 by S. D. Dice. At that time the
faculty was inereased to Ffour members and the leungth of the term
to nine months. The enrollment by that time had resched one hun-
dred twenty-three and the ourriculum had been made very geuneral;
courses in agriculture, ecomomics, history, domestic art and
science being offered.4

V. E. Postme became superintendent in 191.1 and wes succesded
in 1914 by E. W. Wells and he in 1917 by John J. Haney. In 1913
the staff was inoreased to six members asud in 1917 to seven mem~
bers. During all this periocd the enrollment contiuued to grow
until in 1916 it hed reached one hundred thirty-nine.d

This first high school of the county, like mauy of the early
elementary schools led somewhat & nomedic existence, a8 1t wasm
moved about from place to place as it outgrew its former loocations.
The school was first located in what is now the Bell Telephone
office, but as there were only two roome, the school was moved
in 1889 %o & location Just east of the Hays Tavern. This locat-
ion proved unsstisfactory and the school was again moved, thia
time to the present site of the Eethyl junk yards. ILater the
gchool was held in & section of the Eagt Side Grade School, since
named Garfield School. Sometime later the uppser floor of the
Wéshington Gradé School was given owexr to the high school where
1t remained until 1917 when 1t was moved to the newly counstruct-

ed Wilgon High Bchool. The Wilson High 1s modern in all respeocts,

4 Mettle Harris. rPersonal Llnterview. MrB. Harrils 0ae GeEUgnt 1o
the schools of Morrils County since 1895,
5 Ibid.
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and meets North Central Association requirements. It has a fac-
ulty of fifteen members and is one of the real good schools of
Central Kansas.®
White City, although one of the later settled regions of
the County, organized the second high school in the county in 1900.
This school has had a gradual growth, as in its first few years
it was Just an extension of grade school instruction. The ocurric-
wlum conslsted of Latin, algebra, geometry, and rhetoric, and
was taught by the same Ilnstructor as taught the advanced grades.
Some of the early teachers of this school were J. N. Eungle,
H. L. Clerk, G. &. Brown, L. L. Andrews, Tom Woods, C. €. Miller,
Lillian Jenkins, Fanny Ray, L. L. Stephenson, and J. H. Waldron.
3ome of the first year students in the White City school were
"Clifford James, One James, Paul Taggart, Percy Adam, Harry Dod-
ridge, R. J. Herhold, Raymond Lemon, Sam Waruneke and Alice Milli-
gan. The second year new gtudents were enrolled. These were
Esther Moore, Ralph Moore, Ethel Lemon, Willis Sharpe, Ethel Lamb,
R. V. Barber, Inis Barber, and Charlotte Leitch.’
The two hundred and seventy students who have besn graduatdd
from the White City High School sluce it was organized in 1900
are assuming their places in the work of the world at various
places in the state and nation. The classes graduated from this
school wers small at f£irst but have continually iuncreased in size,

with the exception of the two years 1908 and 1909, when there

6 Ibid.
7 Charlotte Leltch. Personal interview. Miss Leitch attended
high school at White City in 190L-1902.
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were no graduates. The first gfadua’b ing class, that of 1903,
consisted of only one pupil, R. J. Herhold. The class of 1904
h&d three membe rs, Harry Dodridge, Grace Goss, and Pereival
Adan. )

A new $80,000 school buildihg was erected at White City in
1923. This bullding houses the grade school children as well as
the ninety-seven high school students, who are taught by a fac-
ulty of five members. The school has & class B ranking and can
always be relied upon to be a close contestant in educational
and athletic contests in the county.

The third high school in the county was established at
Dwight, a village of about two hundred seventy-five population,
in the year 1908. J. W. Zanley was the principal of the grade
school at that time and attempted to give one year's training
"in high school subjects, although he was teaching eighth and
ninth grede work in the grade school at the same time. | The en~
rollment this first year was twelve studeuts. Mr. Zanley con-
tinued this work for three years at which time he was replaced
by A. W. Morris. The precedent having been established, Hr.
Morris continued the work, as did the next principal, Miss Etta
HErickson.

H. H. Ramsey was elected principal of the Dwight school in
1913. As some of the students who had taken this one year course
of high school work here had gone to elther White Clty or Alta
Vista to complete their high school work and desired to have
this first year's work counted for oredit, he succeeded in getting

a representative of the state Board of Educatilon to come and in-



70

gpect the work and to give it his &pprovml.s

The enrollment of this school, however, was never large
and high school work in Dwight did not meke much progress until
1919, when the Rural High School was organized,

Wilsey organized a city high school under s omewhat the same
conditions as had Dwight in 1911. R. A. Postme wes the principal
at Wilsey at t hat time and oconducted the work, in gpite of the
hendicep of having to teach other work, very satisfactorily. The
enrollment during the first yesr of this school was ulneteen.
Fred Barrel was eleated principal of this school in 1912 gnd
offered two years of high aschool work to & group of twanty-eight
studenté. In 1915 another instruetor was sdded and & four year
courge was offered to thirty-two students. Thus 1t may be geen
that when Wilsey orgenized & rural high school in 1923, the
school was well organized and the change which took place was
chiefly a matter of moving from one building to another.

Dunlep, & smell town near the east boundary of the County,
felt the need of a high school in 19L2. Thé: school was estab-
lished in much the same mamner &s were the schools at ¥hite City,

Dwight, and Wilsey. S. S. Long was principsl of the Grade
School at the time of the high school orgenizetion and conducted
the olasees for the six freshmen, as there was ouly one year's
work offered. The next year u two year course was offered to ten
gtudents. F. D. Calkine was in charge of the school during the
next three years, 1914, 1915, and 1916, In 19l6 the enrollment

g H. 0. Remeey. Peraonal Luterview. Wr. Rengey Was DEInoloul
of the Dwight school from 1913-1917.
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reuached twenty-eight and another instrustor was added, also
another year's work was offered. In 1916 the enrollment in-

creased to forty-seven and & four year ocourse was offered.

Rural High Sehodls in Morris County

In 1915 the Legislature of the state of Xanmss enacted a
bill giving the legal electors residing in territory containing
not less than sixteen square miles and comprising one or more
- townships or parts thereof authority to form a rural high school
district, whose boundaries shall have been approved by the county
superintendent of the county in which the building was to be
built. It further provided that whenever a petitiou, signed by
two-f£1ifths of the legal voters reslding in the terrlitory of the
proposed rural high school district shall be presented to the
board of county commissioners of the county in which lies the
greater part of the territory comprising the dlstrict, thet the
county oommiésioners will call an election to vote on the estab~
lishing and locating of a rural high school.

It was in accordaunce with this law that the small village,
Parkerville, in Morris County, organized the first rural high
school in the county, as well as in the state. The organization
of this school met with severe opposition in the community and
regulted in some bitter feeling between people of the community.
This, however, wore off in the course of a few years, and a8 the
high school began to prove iltself a valuable umsset to the oom-
munity it tended to biund the people of the large distrioct to-

gether in & way that previously hed not been experienced.
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During the early spring of 1915, Mr. Leagenby, the principal
of @he Parkerville Grade Scliool, who was conducting classes in
algebre, botany, and history for ninth grade gradustes in the
gchool, a8 well as conducting his claesses in geventh, eighth, and
ninth grade work, brought a copy of the new lew to echool and
read 1t to the students and explained to them how it would be
possible to have a rursl high school organized at Parkerville.
The students were very much elated over the possibilities of the
plan and induced Mr. Leazenby to write up a suitable petition
to be circulated in the community. The petition was prepared
and clroulated by the students and graduates of the previous
school year, 1914-1915. The boys who ocarried the petition walk-
ed, while the girls drove a horse and buggy. The students, kpow-
Ing that they could catoh large groups of qualified electors to=-
gether at the annuasl rural school meeting, preseuted copies of
the petition at meetings of the five districts which were pros
posed to be included in the rural high school district. @hmsm
petitions met with various respounses, some of the patrous being
very favorable to the plan while others (chiefly land owners who
had no children to be benefited by the school) opposed it vipl-
ently. This éomewhat timid growp of studlents met with some such
responses as: "I'll fight 1t tooth and toe nall," "It is an out-
rage,” "I palid for my education and others should do the same.V
Some of the opposiltion went so far as to hire a lawyer to leek
into the legallty of the proposition. This £lrst petltlon med
with enoouragement and awakened enough luterest in the community

that some of the more forward meun of the community got bvehind
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the movement end it resulted iu the erection of the first rural
high school in the astate.

Due to faulty wording of the firet petition, & sescond one
had to be carried. By this time the proposlition hed been dis-
cussed pro end con lu the communilty, and, as a rather iunfluen-
tial group had got behind the movement, the petition esrried by
a good majority.

The petiti on took somewhat the following :form:9

Rural High School Petition

WE the undersigned legal voters in the territory bouund-
ed as follows ... do hereby petition the Board of Couanty
Commissioners of Morris County, Kawsas, to call a special
election in the above described District to vote on the
question of establishing and locating & rural high school
in and for said Distriet, and to vote bonds in the sum of
$6,000, for the constrtction and equipment of & high school
building and to purchase & site for said building; saild
high school to be located ... They further certify thet
tere is no incorporated town of or exceeding 300 popul-
ation in said District, and that saild Piastrict comprises
more than sixteen square miles end more than oune town-
ship, and that the signatures here to amount to more than
one-fifth of the legal voters residing within the territory.
All in accordance with and under the terms and provisions
of House Bill No. 36 enacted by the Legislature of ¥ansas
at the session of 19l5.

This signed petition was presented to the County Commission-

ery and they lssued an order known a8 & Resolution and Order which

read a8 folloWs:lO

Resolution aud Order

WHEREAS a petitlon hes been presented to the Board of
County Commissioners of Morris County, Fensas, praying
that sald Board oall a spealal electlion for the purpose
of locating & rural high school, and for issuing bonds
for the purpese of bullding & high school building within
the distrioﬁ bounded as follows... AND WHERHAS an enumer-

? Gggnty Records 0f Rural High SCHOOL, NOos L, CoULOLL CTove, Rand.
0 Ibid.
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ation of all the qualified electors residing within the
district has been filed with said petition, and it being
shown to sald board that all the signatures to sald -
petition are genuine and that all of the persons signing
sald petition are qualified electors in the sbove dem-
soribed District... IT IS THEREFORE ordered by the board
of County Commissioners of Morrls County, Kanses, thet &
gpecial electlon be, and is hereby called and ordered to
be held in the ebove district for the purpose of voting
on establishing and locating & rural high school in said
Distriet, and to vote bonds in the sum of 6,000, %o
build and equip. It is further ordered that sald epeciel
election be held on Tuesday, the fifteenth day of June,
AD. 1915, and that said notice of such election be given
a8 required by law and that sald electlon shall be govern-
ed by the general election laws of the state of Kansas.

In accordance with that resolution and order the election
was held on the date set. The opposition, as well as those
spongor ing the movement were there with thelr forces, but the
opposition was not a danger ous rival, as there were two hundred
gixteen votes ocast, and one hundred forty-four of them were for
the building of a high school while ounly seventy~two were against
it.

Another election was called for August 12, 19156, to choose
members of the board, it having been decided that the director
should be elected for three years, the clerk for two years and
the tresurer for one year. At that election 4. G. Leitch was
elected Chalrman Pro Tem, &nd, in the election that followed, he
was elected director in which capacity he served until his death
in 1924, F. W. Parker was theu gppolnted to the offlce and was
elected to the office to which he had been appoiuted in the next
geveral ele otion.

¢, H. Brown was slected treasurer at that first election and
gerved in thet capacity for four years. William Churohman was

elected olerk at the first general electlon. 7The faoulty hired
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by these men consisted of two teachers, J. Rogooe Ohandler, who
ls at the head of the Teaohers Placement Buresu at University of
Kenges, Lewrence, and Miss Blanche Gorrell.

Work was immedlately ‘begun on the mew building and it was
made ready for oocupancy January L, 1916. Prior to thit +ime
classes were conducted In the Methodist Churoch. The enrollment
the first year cousisted of seventeen members, one junior, seven
' sophomores, and nine freshmen. l’l‘he first graduvating class, that
of 1917, consisted of one member, Miss Pauline Mitchell. The
class of 1918 consisted of six members, Mae F. Trock, Mary Bar-
ber, Carl Remsey, Howard Strouts, Laird Glassocock, sad Frauk
Parker . Graduates of the clasas of 1919 were: Elms Kenﬁail,
Esther Baker, Doris Burton, Avis Morris, and Cecil Leiltch.

In 1930, at the time the bonds were paid off, new bonde
were floated for the construction of & #10,000 addition to the
building. The. addition weas in the form of & gymnasium and
audltorium. This addition was constructed in such & way as to
duplicate the original frontage of the building, thus glving it
the appearance of & duplex.

There have been one hundred thirty-five students graduated
from this school, the graduating classes averaglug about seven
members. The present fagulty conslasts of three teachers aud the
enrollment of thirty-six students.

In the spriug of 1917, the people of the Delsvan community,
a 8mall village community in the west part of the county, began
to feel the need of & high school, &a some children in the com-

munity were be lug deprived of high school training and others



76

were having to go away to the neighboring clties of Heriugton,
(in Dickenson County) White City and Councll Grove. Thils educ-
ation away from home was expensive as tuition had to be paid,
as well as board and room. Furthermore, it was felt that child-
ren of high school age were in a better environment when stay-
ing at home under the supervision of %their own parents. This
general feeling led to the petitioning for, and finally to the '
comgtruction of & $10,000 building. The ares of the district
included in this district was fifty square miles, and the valu-
ation of this property was §l,933,000 while the area of tha
Parkerville district was fourty-eight miles and the valuation
:;;51,400’,000. A8 the Dbuilding was not made ready for occupancy
until Decembar 10, 1917, school was started in the I. Q. 0. F.
building. The first principal of the school was A. B. Hylton.
The enrollment the first year that this school wes opsrated
was fourteen students, and only two years instruction was offer-
ed. The school was not on the approved list of high schools the
first year and was not accredited until 1l221. o

The enrollment increased f£rom year to year at this school
until, at the présen’c time, it is thirty-three students. The
faculty now consists of four members, a coach having bedkn- .
added to the staff in 1926, when a $10,000 addition, in the form
of a gymnasium was added to the building.

The followlng year, 1918, Dunlap, which had been conducting
a2 c¢ity high school smince 1912, organized & rural high school.
The olty high school had grown rapldly making the bullding in

which 1t was located no longer adequate, @8 the enrollment had



™

to forty-nine. Furthermore the rural community felt it their
duty to ald in the higher education of the ohildren.

A petition was circulated calling for a $20,000 building
which was erected in 1918. The building contained a gymuasium
and other features found ouly in one other school in the county,
the Wilson High School in Council Grove. The principal of the
school had two assistants each of whom was paid $675, the prin-
cipal being paid $1,000. The district established contained
sixty square miles and had a valuation of $2,400,000. The pre~
gent faculty at Dunlap consists of f£ive members and the enroll-
ment of fifty-five students.

Under somewhat the same odﬁditions as Dunlap had orgenized
a rural high school, Dwight petitioned for one in 1918. The
building, & $20,000 strusture, was built in 1919. Dwight had had
2 high school since 1908, but it was in connection with the grade
school and only offered one years instruction until 1916, while
White City and Alta Vista, offered four year courses and were
within & reasonable distance of most of the community. For this
reason the enrollment had remained small, there being 6nly one
téacber and an enrollment of fifteen students at the time that
the rural high school was organized. However, the enrollment,
the year the new building was occunied, increased to thirty-three
students and the faculty was increased to two members. The
petition called for a district which was to include sixty-three
gquuare miles and this area haed an estimated wvaluation of
$2,226,000.

H '
At the present time bwight has & faculty of five members und
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an enrollment of eighty-six students, this beilng the largest en-
rollment of any of the rural high schools in the county, with the
exception of Wilsey High School.

The Diamond Valley Rural High School which 1s located at
Burdick, in Morris County, was organized under much the game con-
ditions as were the high schools at Parkerville and Delavan.

The people in that community were confronted with the proposition
of elther depriving their children of high school instruction or
sending them away from home to different éities during thelr high
achool careers. To prevent this‘educational handicap the community
petitioned for a $40,000 high school. This was the fifth rural
high school organized in the county. The district plotted contained
eighty square miles. Thils land was situated in three counties,
Chease, Marion and Morris. The greater part of the land, however,
was in Morris County. The school was established as a three year
approved school. A faculty of two members was hired to instruct
the group of thirty-four students. The valuation of the district
wes placed at $2,300,000,

At the present time the faculty of the Burdick High School
is tomposeduef four members nd the school enrollment 1s thirty-
five students.

The Wilsey commﬁnity organized a rurrl high school in 1918,
however, they did not bulld & separate building until 1923. The
buii&ing which they consgstructed in 1923 was a large and very ela-
borate structure. Tt 1ls only surpassed by two other buildinga in
the county, Wilson Figh at founcil Grove and White City High School
which 1s also ugsed for the White Clty Grade School. Wilsay
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Rural High School now has an enrollment of ninety-six students.
These students are instructed by a staff of five members and the
gchool 1s one of the best equipped high schools in the county.
The digbrict as laid out coutains eighty-three square miles and

has a valuation of §2,606,000.

Summary

Since the first secondary school was establlished in Morris
County in 1885, secoundary education in the cgounty, as well as in
the 3tate and Nation has experienced remarkable changes. The
ldea that the purpose of the school was to discipline the mind,
to & decided extent determined what the curriculum would be in
& secoudary school up until approximately 1915. Thus the schools
organized at Counoil Grove, White City, Dwight, Wilsey, and
Dunlap were largely &an outgrbwth of this mind training motive.
However, by the time of the passage of the Legislative Act per-
mitting the organizatign of rural higsh schools, this mental dis-
cipline motion had lergely vanished. This being true, the cur-
riculum offered in these rursl high schools was made much broad-
er and gave & considerably wider variety of subjects for studeunts
to choose from. Most of these schools of fered two types of
curriculum. First, & college preparsetory couwrse which contaiuned
nunerous mental discipline subjects such as Latin, algebra, geom-
etry, aud & group of slective subjects. Second, a ocurriculum
whioh wes thought to be practical for the boy or girl who expect-
ed to remain on the faﬁm. This later type of curriculum would

not admit & student to college if he should declde to enter to
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enroll in one fbliowing his or her graduation from high school.
For this reason the two courses were soon to & large sxtent com~
bined, the college wreparatory cowrse being made much more 1ib-
eral.

Following the Legislative Act of 1915, Parkerville, in 1915,
and Delavan, in 1917, established rural high schools, as did many
other rural districts in the state. In December 1917, the legils-
lature amended the law by forbidding the organization of & rural
high school with a dlstrict valuation 6f less than $2,000,000.
Since that time Dunlap, Dwight, Burdick, and Wilsey havé organiz-~
ed rural high Schools. The districts organized by these com-
munities were made larger in order to meet the new legislative
requirement. The increased size of districts led to suggested
increased enrollment and this in turn to the counstrustion of
lerger betbter equipped buildings than had been bullt at Parker-
ville and Delavan.

Enrollment in secondary schools in Morris County has con-
stantly lncreased since 1885, and with the establishmeunt of rural
high schools 1t increased much more rapidly between fthe years
1915-1920. At the present time there are seven hundred two stdd-
ents eunrolled in the secondsry schools of Morris County. These
students are Instructed by a faculty of forty-five members.
standards have been raised from time to time, but these schools
have always willingly met these demands and at the present time
they wre clussifled as follows:

Wilson High, Counclil Grove Clasa A

White Clty High Class B



Dwight Rural High
Dunlsp Rurel High
Dlamond Valley Rursal
Delavan Rural High
Wilsey Rural High
Parkerville Rursl High

Clags
Classg
Glasa
Class
Class

Class

v 8 ¥ =B W

¢
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In the forty~eight years that secondary school iustruction has

been offered in Morris County approximstely nineteen hundred

students have beeu gradusted from them and many of them are now

holding offices and positions of much respect in the county, as

well as the State and Nation.
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CHAPTER VIIT

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

The chief objective of thig study has been the gathering of
all material pertaining directly to the educational growth and
gdvancement of Morris County, ¥ansas. It has been the purpose
of the author in making this study to collect all the available
data which to any considerable extent hags been influential in
esteblishing trends in educational advancement in the county .

It has further been the purpose of the author to organize this
material into & clear and understandable manuscript.

In compiling this material the author has treated specifi-
cally the development of trends until they were definitely
established, then has summarized them in & rather general manner.

The historical setting of the county has been dealt with
in considersable detail. In this connection, loecation, topo-
graphy, occupations, and eafly settlements were studied. The
incentives for settlement were emphasized, the method of settle-
ment was touched upon, and the influence of natural boundaries
such as plains and unsheltered regions was shown. Special
effort has been made to show how the settlements tended to
follow the streams having the more sheltered or fertile valleys.
The study further demonstrates how the settlers, after settl-
ing the valleys and establishlng schools in them, attacked
the plains regions and converted mush of the grass land into
Qrop growing areas.

Efforts were next turned toward tracing the early educ-

ational movements within the wrea now comprising Morris County.
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The efforts of the Methodist Hpiscopal Church, through mission-
aries, tdeducate the Indian Children were traced, then the
efforts of the Quakers at the same task were considered. It
was found that the Xew Indians were & heathenish and super-
stitious tribe and that they were not nearly as susoeptible to
educational and religious training as many of the other tribes.
The tribe was found to have preserved many of their ancient
customs and superstitions. It was further found that the Kaws.

accepted little of the white man's teachings and culture, also
-

1

that they epproved for more of the vices with which they came
in ochtact through their associations ﬁith "Groagers" and white
men of 1ill repute. |

Efforts aﬁ educating the white children were next iﬁvest—
igated, and, for purposes of comparison, the study was made
over periods of years; the first three periods each being five
years in length and the fourth and fifth periods being fifteen
years in length. The study ilndlcates two periods of extraord-
. inary educational advancemeut. The first, chiefly in elem-
entary education, was during the period of years between 1870-
1885. The second period was between 1915-1925. The second
period was due to two factors; first, the efforts of rural
school supervisors to standardlze the schools of the county;
second, the growth of rural high schools in the county.

By & law passed by the state legislature 1in 1861, soon
after Kunsas became & state, the certificatlion of teachers was
turned over to the few organized counties in the state. During
the next elght years all county certification was carried on

by the county superintendent. This method wus replamced in 1869
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by the creation of & County Board of Examiners. The method 18
8411l in use today and only minor changes have been made iu it.
The function of this board was to administer iun an impartiai
way the examinations for county teaching certificates. Graded
certificates were provided for in 1876, but many changes and
alterations have been made in the grades of ceftificates grant-
ed by the county. One of the lmportant steps in the develop-
ment of the county certification agency came in 1911, when
graduvation from an accredited high school was required as a
prerequisite to obtain a first grade county certificate.

The study shows that teachers institutes were first held
in Morris County in 1864. These first institutes were Normal
Digtriot Institutes. The need for & more wide-spread system
of institutes was soon felt, and this feellng soon resulted in
institubes being placed under the control of the county super-
intendent, thus changing their status from Normal District In-
gtitutes to0 County Hormal Institutes. These first institutes
were held for periods of from two to five days, but later they
were extended to cover four week periods. Later the law was
changed to make optional with the county superintendent the
holding of an ingtitute for from five to twenty days, as he or
she saw fit. In accordance with this law the oounty'supérin-
tendent in 1918 (Flora E. Davis) conducted the first profession-
al institube in the county. This form of institute has been
in uge 1in the county since that time.

The public high school movement had its begluning in Amer-

ica in the third decade o2& the uineteenth century and had estab-
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lished itself firmly by the last guarter of the century. This
Secondary school movement in dmerica is divided into two per-
iods; first, the period from 1870-1890 which is known as the
period of growth and development of secondary education in
America; second, the period following 1890 which is known as

the period of dominance of the public high school in the field
of secondary*education. The first high school in Morris County,
located at Councll Grove, was established in 1885; during the
first period of the movement. The rest of the schools were
established in and following 1900, and at the present time, with
the exception of White City and Council Grove schools, are con-

ducted as ruraﬂ?igh gchools.
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